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To conduct independent investigations into possible auditing or reporting
irregularities by auditors of listed entities
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To enquire into possible non-compliance with accounting requirements by listed
entities
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Approaching a new era
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In order to be recognised globally as a major international financial centre,

it is crucial for Hong Kong to have an independent auditor regulatory FRC isirgegns
regime that is consistent with international best practice and in line with
other major capital markets worldwide. We welcome the introduction of
the amendment bill.

We strongly believe that the introduction of the bill is in the best interest
of Hong Kong as well as the investing public. The FRC is ready to tackle G
any additional challenge that may arise in the new era of being the ANEW ERA
independent fully-fledged auditor regulator for Hong Kong. remen
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EREHE

“ Currently, 45 jurisdictions around the world

are recognised by the EC as having regulatory
equivalence, and their independent regulatory bodies
are also members of IFIAR. Such dual recognition
has become the international norm and if such dual
recognition can be achieved by Hong Kong, the
city’s status and reputation as a major international
financial centre will certainly be enhanced.

B - 2RE A EREERIGHRNEZESEESFWE
1% BBV EERBTEIFARKKE - RIS EEER
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ZEBRE SR O R BEBBSBEIRT

Dr John Poon, BBS, JP Chairman
EAERAEL - WEHEE - KFet 25

The year 2017 was another significant milestone for the FRC. Our work 2017 FR Y HERB R — A= B B2 - H B E
over the last ten years has created a solid foundation from which to take 10FHNITIEE T THEBENRE » AEXKEMES
on additional professional responsibilities in the sphere of auditor oversight. B RFEEBE - B & BT 22018 FH I5E
With the introduction of the Financial Reporting Council (Amendment) Bill  $®/3 (B:T) &PIEZR - RAREBEDHLT - &
2018, we are indeed entering a new era. It is my great privilege to be the JEESE  HESENRAUNGBERBTENE
FRC’s Chairman at this momentous time, and have the honour of leading % - A %BB KIERBEAK AEE HE EZHE
the FRC as it transforms into Hong Kong'’s fully-fledged independent auditor 9% 87 BE B A -

regulator of auditors of listed entities.

10th Anniversary Cocktail Reception of the FRC.
MBERS T AFERES -
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Auditor Regulatory Reform

The FRC has been advocating auditor regulatory reform since the beginning
of this decade. Our belief has always been that such reform is in the best
interests of the investing public, and that it would bring Hong Kong'’s
auditor regulatory regime up to date with international norms. Other auditor
regulatory regimes around the world have migrated successfully from “self-
regulation” to “independent oversight” as a result of legislative changes,
which has enhanced audit quality and investor protection internationally.

Over the years, Hong Kong’s capital market has grown very significantly.
The number of listed entities is now approaching 2,200, and market
capitalisation has risen to over HK$30 trillion. Nevertheless, recent studies
suggest that, to compete with its international rivals, Hong Kong needs to
continue to attract new listings, for example by introducing more diverse
types of business and company structures. In embracing this inevitable
market evolution, Hong Kong must also meet the expectations of the
global investing public. This means it must have an independent and robust
oversight regime for auditors of listed entities in Hong Kong.

On the basis of our Update on Independent Audit Oversight Report,
published in 2016, we believe that the Amendment Bill when passed
will enable the FRC to become a member of the International Forum of
Independent Audit Regulators (IFIAR). This is a forum, membership of which
is open to relevant independent regulatory bodies such as the UK Financial
Reporting Council and the US Public Company Accounting Oversight Board,
that enables members to share their regulatory experience and inspection
findings with other members from around the globe with an aim of enhancing
audit quality. While IFIAR does not prescribe competency requirements for
all aspects of the oversight responsibilities of its members, one of its Core
Principles states that members must have stable funding that is sufficient for
them to execute their responsibilities.

EC regulatory equivalence status is regarded internationally as an
endorsement of the competence of an auditor regulator across core aspects
of its oversight ambit, i.e. registration, inspection, investigation, discipline,
standards on professional ethics and auditing, and continuing professional
education. A total of 53 jurisdictions worldwide, including China, the UK
and the US, currently meet the EC regulatory equivalence requirements.
Obtaining EC regulatory equivalence status would lead to enhanced global
confidence in Hong Kong’s auditor regulatory regime, and facilitate cross-
border investment.
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The existing EC Directive requires that the governing body of an independent
auditor regulator must be comprised solely of non-practitioners (i.e. persons
who in the previous three years have not been involved in statutory audits
or been employed by or associated with an audit firm). Such composition
requirement, once embedded in legislation will ensure the governing
body’s independence from the audit profession and does not hinder the
appointment of talent with accounting and auditing expertise to that body.

Currently, 45 jurisdictions around the world are recognised by the EC as
having regulatory equivalence, and their independent regulatory bodies are
also members of IFIAR. Such dual recognition has become the international
norm and if such dual recognition can be achieved by Hong Kong, the city’s
status and reputation as a major international financial centre will certainly be
enhanced.

A Decade of Achievements

The FRC handles all complaints and investigations with the same rigour
and professionalism, regardless of the size of the audit firms or listed
entities involved. All parties affected are accorded due process. Over the
last decade, the FRC has diligently discharged its independent investigator
role in the face of a marked increase in the volume and complexity of
complaints. In this time we have processed over 400 complaints, completed
almost 70 investigations and enquiries, and made numerous referrals to
relevant regulatory bodies for follow-up. These have led to disciplinary
actions against auditors in accordance with the Professional Accountants
Ordinance, and the correction of non-compliance with accounting
requirements by listed entities. All this has been achieved by a small group
(currently numbering 14) of competent and dedicated professional staff,
on a current annual budget of HK$35 million. None of this would have
been possible without the full commitment and unwavering support of our
Council members and Honorary Advisors. Their in-depth knowledge and
expertise in accounting and auditing, coupled with their business acumen,
have enriched our deliberations on various matters and helped us handle a
diverse range of day-to-day operational issues effectively.

Since its inception, the FRC has adhered closely to its core principles of
independence and impartiality, accountability and transparency, integrity
and proficiency. We welcome the proposals in the Bill as recognition of our
independence from the audit profession and our competence in discharging
our statutory duties in the public interest for over a decade. However, we
will need to attract and recruit high calibre staff with relevant competencies
in order to execute the new mandate in respect of inspection, discipline and
oversight.

Financial Reporting Council Annual Report 2017
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Regulatory Collaboration

The globalisation of financial markets and the increase in cross-border
investment activities require greater levels of collaboration and mutual
reliance among regulators, which is the international trend. We believe that
achieving dual recognition (IFIAR and EC) will enable us to strengthen our
roles of enforcement and cooperation, in particular by enabling us to enter
into memoranda of understanding with independent auditor regulators
globally.

In addition to participating in regular liaison meetings with other regulators
in Hong Kong, the FRC has also established excellent relationships with
independent auditor regulators in the ASEAN region.

The FRC has held constructive discussions with the Ministry of Finance
(MOF) and the China Securities Regulatory Commission in the Mainland. We
are actively working on the development of a comprehensive memorandum
of understanding with the MOF, which should complement our expanded
role once the amended Ordinance becomes effective.
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In March 2017, the Chairman of the FRC, Dr John Poon, met with the CEO of the UK FRC, Mr Stephen Haddrill.
20176 3 A + 7K/3 3 5 7318 BE 8 -+ £ 18 B B 745 D 5 /57 T ER 48 %X Stephen Haddrill e £ 2 HE

MEERE 2017F 8K



CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT (continueq)
FERE @

Appreciations

| would like to express my thanks to our Chief Executive Officer, Mr. Paul F.
Winkelmann, and to all our staff for their contributions in the past year, and
especially for their work in preparing the FRC for the challenges of a new era.

In addition, my heartfelt thanks go to the members of the Honorary Advisory
Panel and the Financial Reporting Review Panel. The time they have given,
together with their invaluable expertise, have been essential to the effective
and efficient operations of the FRC.

The impartiality and independence of mind exhibited by Council members
are the cornerstone of our Council. | would like to express my gratitude to
each one of them for their continuous support and unfailing commitment to
the FRC.

Financial
Reporting Council
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Looking Ahead

| believe our stakeholders appreciate that the auditor regulatory reform is
in the best interests of Hong Kong, and support the establishment of an
internationally recognised independent auditor regulator for Hong Kong.
In this role, the FRC will of course continue to operate in accordance with
its core principles, and act at all times in the public interest. | am confident
that, with adequate resources provided, the FRC is ready to bring all its
professionalism to the task of tackling any challenges arising in its new role
as the independent fully-fledged auditor regulator for Hong Kong.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S REPORT
TR R

‘ 6 2017 was another record year of activity.

We received more complaints than ever
before and we completed the same
number of investigations as last year
which itself was a record year.

2017 FH B IGIESR B & =GR —F o
BB ABREERZINF BT
KEFAEEREEHEFAR  MEFAR
BN Bk —F o

Mr Paul F. Winkelmann Chief Executive Officer
e R K& mEai

This is my second report as CEO, and | am very pleased to record that
we have enjoyed another very active year in 2017. In last year’s report |
noted that the FRC would continue to focus on three main areas in 2017:
enhancing our operational efficiency, continuing our support for audit
regulatory reform, and fostering our collaboration with other regulators. |
have pleasure now in writing in more detail about how we have addressed
these three priorities over the past year.

10" Anniversary

The year 2017 marked the 10th anniversary of the commencement of the
FRC’s operations. We celebrated this momentous occasion with a cocktail
reception attended by almost 250 guests, including our guest of honour, the
Honourable Mr Paul Chan Mo-po, the Financial Secretary of the Government
of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region.

Financial Reporting Council Annual Report 2017
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During the past ten years we received and handled over 400 complaints,
as well as completing 56 investigations and 11 enquiries. Also in that time,
we referred a total of 69 investigations and complaints to the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (HKICPA) for possible disciplinary
action. Of these referrals, 39 have resulted in sanctions being applied, while
| understand that the majority of the remainder are still working through
the disciplinary process. In addition, 101 complaints which appear to
have originated from a single source, while they did not give rise to any
investigation, have been referred to the HKICPA for their direct follow-up.
With respect to the 11 enquiries we completed, eight of these led to listed
issuers being requested to amend their financial statements. | believe this
summary of the FRC’s achievements clearly demonstrates that we have
acted firmly in the public interest since we commenced operations, and that
we have continued to do so despite an increasing workload each year.

2017 Operations

As was the case in 2016, once again this year we received a record number
of pursuable complaints. These amounted to 126 complaints in total,
compared to 118 last year. Removing the anomaly mentioned in the above
paragraph, we received a total of 26 complaints from different sources which
compares to 22 in 2016. The complaints in 2017 are also the largest number
on record. We completed 11 investigations in the year, matching the record
number we completed in 2016.

Further discussion and analysis of our operations in the year can be found in
the “Management and Operations Review” section on pages 50 to 67 of this
annual report.

The two outstanding enquiries are currently progressing, and | am confident
they will be completed shortly.

Our financial statements review programme was brought fully in-house
during the year. This move proved beneficial in terms of enabling us to clear
a backlog that had developed over previous years, and | am pleased to note
that we are now up to date in our process of reviewing financial statements
issued in 2017. The filtering mechanism we introduced last year has also
brought new efficiencies to the programme by helping us better focus on
areas of likely non-compliance and/or auditing irregularities.

In addition, we have leveraged our financial statements review programme
and our media watch activities to develop a system which enables us to
better monitor the financial reporting of certain companies. This is helping
us identify non-compliance with accounting standards and/or potential
irregularities in the conduct of the audit on a more real-time basis.
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In conjunction with external legal counsel, we undertook a comprehensive
review of our procedures in respect of enquiries and investigations. This
involved carrying out a detailed analysis of our procedures, and linking every
procedure in our operations manual with the specific requirements of the
relevant legislation in the Financial Reporting Council Ordinance (FRCO).
This review has confirmed that the FRC’s procedures continue to be in
full compliance with the FRCO. In addition, we examined every one of our
procedures individually to ensure that they each were contributing fully to the
quality and effectiveness of our work, without any compromises for the sake
of expediency. This exercise is now complete, and our manual has been
updated accordingly. Although the exercise did slow down the finalisation of
some of our reports, it did not disrupt the flow of our work, and we managed
to close the same number of cases as we did in 2016 (itself a record year).

Regulatory Reform

On 24 January 2018, the audit regulatory reform amendment bill was
introduced to the Legislative Council. | am personally elated to have
witnessed its introduction at last, as the FRC has long advocated the
need for such a bill. Once passed, the reforms will provide a new impetus
for us to continue our work in the public interest. We are committed to
fully supporting the passage of the bill and working hard on its successful
implementation.

During the year |, along with members of my staff, spent much time
delivering presentations on the Government’s reform proposals in response
to invitations from professional accounting bodies and audit firms. |
personally found these sessions to be particularly beneficial for all parties,
and am confident that they enabled attendees to better understand the
proposals and their benefits. For 2018, we have developed an outreach
programme that will provide us with channels for explaining the impact of the
bill on members of the profession in more detail.
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In August 2017, the CEO of the FRC gave a presentation about independent auditor regulatory
to the partners and executives of Ernst & Young in Hong Kong.
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In December 2017, the CEO of the FRC gave a
presentation about “Update on Independent Audit
Oversight” at a seminar hosted by CPA Australia.
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Regulator Outreach

We have continued to reach out to, and interact with, other regulators in
Hong Kong and China and in the international arena over the year. As part
of this process, we held quarterly meetings with the Securities and Futures
Commission (SFC), Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited (HKEX) and
the HKICPA at which we shared information on cross-referrals and common
findings from our respective activities, and discussed how we could improve
our responses to issues arising on a timely basis.

We also continued our dialogue with the PRC’s Ministry of Finance (MOF) on
our respective roles. These discussions included the topic of gaining access
to audit working papers in the Mainland. Recent meetings have proved very
fruitful, and our discussions are now turning to include our future role once
the amendment bill is enacted.

Earlier in the year, | together with my deputy CEO and one of our senior
directors attended an ASEAN Audit Regulators Group meeting. This
included valuable sessions on inspection workshops and lessons learnt
internationally, along with a detailed workshop on financial statements
surveillance. | also attended a regional regulators meeting in Bangkok, where
discussions were held on global audit quality and ways of promoting the
value of an audit.

The FRC has also maintained dialogue with the International Forum of
Independent Audit Regulators (IFIAR). Most recently, we informed IFIAR
of the introduction of the auditor regulatory amendment bill, in which that
organisation is taking a keen interest.

As part of their visit to China and Hong Kong, the UK FRC delegation paid
us a courtesy visit, which proved a useful opportunity for us to exchange
ideas on our respective work. The UK FRC expressed a keen interest in
assisting us in our transition to new responsibilities following the passage of
the amendment bill.
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In March 2017, the UK FRC delegation paid a courtesy visit

to the FRC.
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In February 2017, the CEO and the Deputy CEO of the FRC attended the Financial Statements Surveillance Workshop hosted by the Securities Commission

Malaysia in Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia.

201742 A ARMITHREHLATRER2ET HFRATESFZ IR EER BT MM RRELENTEY -

Communication with the Investing Public

Each year the FRC issues two electronic newsletters covering the first and
second half of the year respectively. We have recently enhanced these
newsletters by including information about the primary areas in which
non-compliance with accounting standards occurs, and related auditing
irregularities at the level of financial reporting component. This should help
our readers, whether they are auditors or preparers, to be better aware of
the areas they need to pay close attention to. In addition, as we do every
year, the FRC again reported on its work and answered questions from
legislators at a meeting of the Legislative Council’s Panel on Financial Affairs.

Financial Review

In 2017, our four funding parties — the Companies Registry Trading Fund,
the HKEX, the HKICPA and the SFC - together provided us with HK$30.83M
of funding (2016: HK$29.36M). Our total expenditure for the year amounted
to HK$29.73M (2016: HK$27.33M). The surplus for the year was HK$1.85M
(2016: HK$2.88M). Staff costs accounted for HK$25.41M or 85.5% of total
expenses (2016: HK$23.44M or 85.8% of total expenses).
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HBIL) c BIAAE2,641 BHIT  (E485H%85.5%
(2016 4F : 2,344 BT » 1H#BF1285.8%) ©
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Chairman

ESE

Dr John Poon, BBS, JP (re-appointment effective 15 December 2016; term
expires on 14 December 2018)

Dr Poon is a solicitor. He was formerly the deputy chairman of Esprit Holdings
Limited until July 2008. Dr Poon served as a lay member of the council of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (HKICPA) from December
2005 to December 2011 during which he was also the chairman of Professional
Quialifications Accountability Board (2009-2011) and the chairman of Governance
Review Task Force in 2011. He was a member of the Standing Committee on
Company Law Reform (2003-2009) and the Board of Review (Inland Revenue
Ordinance) (2004-2010). He was also formerly a non-executive director of the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Authority (2011-2017).

BEEBEEL  EFEE 0 KM (R2016F 12
RA15BBEEZE : £HZE2018F 12 A 14BfEM)

EBEE LA —RER - b BEBRBRRIZERBR AR
KEIEFE2008F7 A - BB LT ER2005F 128 E
2011 F 12 ALERBSIMASEBEESHEINES
HRMEAEEERBEEZ BT E/E (2009-2011) &
2011 FHEERRAIZR/NEEE - thEEAF]
AR EEEEEE K E (2003-2009) @ LB LFE
B EZ 8 (2004-2010) © L N B HEER B E R TER T
BB BMIENITESE (2011-2017) ©

Members

&

Mr Chan Tze Ching, BBS, JP (re-appointment effective 1 December 2016 on
the nomination of the Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited; term expires
on 30 November 2018)

Mr Chan is a senior advisor of The Bank of East Asia and CVC Capital Partners.
Mr Chan is a veteran banker, with over 30 years of banking experience covering
Hong Kong, Japan, Taiwan and Mainland China. He currently serves on the
boards of various listed companies, NGOs and government statutory bodies.

BRTERELE  HEFIEE > AFPHL(RBEERIR
HEFRARARIRSE  N2016F 12 A1 HBERES
T E8=2018F 11 A30BER)

B 2 A= 3R (E 3R 25 8817 & CVC Capital Partners = 44 B8
o BREEREFRBIAIR  EERERBBIOFL
5 IEES - BA - fERTPEIEM o th B RTEE
ZE EHAT - EEEERBITDEERENES -
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Mr Wilson Fung (re-appointment effective 1 December 2016 on the nomination
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants; term expires on 30
November 2018)

Mr Fung has over 17 years of experience in auditing followed by 21 years as a
financial controller in Jardine Matheson. He is a fellow member of the HKICPA,
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales. He was elected as president of the HKICPA
in 2010. He was formerly a convenor to the Financial Reporting Review Panel of
the FRC (2007-2013). Mr Fung is the founding president of Hong Kong Business
Accountants Association and currently serves on the Boards of several NGOs
and statutory bodies.

BEELE(REASHAMACIRSE  KR2016F 12
A1 BBEEZEE : EEZE 20184 11 A 30 B/EM)

HEERERB7T FETER  ERENEEERR
A EMGEEEBE21F - WEFBSMAE
FRF ARG A K AR M R AT RT & 5HAm
REHEREE - BN 20105 B ESB B Z A
REEEK - T HEMBERBDH P BEERBRNZ
SE A5 A (2007-2013) « JF LR ERE BRI A G HAD
haaleesk  BAREZESREENRRERE
MEER  PRIKE -

Mr Nicholas Sallnow-Smith (re-appointment effective 1 December 2017; term
expires on 30 November 2018)

Mr Sallnow-Smith has over 40 years of experience in the finance and treasury
field in the United Kingdom and Asia, and has extensive knowledge of the
property investment/management industry in Hong Kong. He has been chairman
of The Lion Rock Institute of Hong Kong since April 2016. He was previously
chairman of the Board of the REIT Manager Link Asset Management Limited
(2007-2016) and prior to that he was chief executive of Hongkong Land Limited
(2000-2007). He has also been actively involved in public service.

#IKBALAE(R2017F12 A1 BBEERET 82
2018411 A30 B Eim)

BRIk PR S A A B R 20 N A & il N B B B I R B
AFEEKE  WEBRBNMERE EBRITERERE
HA - thE 201664 ARETETBSMTILES
Eo eI EREEEEARATINEESS T E
(2007-2016) * ULAT * L ABBEHMERE QA AIFTIR
#% (2000-2007) °© fi Jh— B FER 2 B A H R A o

Mr Sin Chung Kai, SBS, JP (re-appointment effective 1 December 2017; term
expires on 30 November 2018)

Mr Sin was a Legislative Councillor representing the geographical constituency
of Hong Kong Island (2012-2016). He has served on several boards and NGOs
including the West Kowloon Cultural District Authority (2008-2014) and the
Hong Kong Tourism Board (2008-2014). He also served as a member of the
Council for Sustainable Development (2009-2013), the Greater Pearl River Delta
Business Council (2009-2013) and the Operations Review Committee and
Witness Protection Review Board Panel of the Independent Commission Against
Corruption (ICAC) (2006-2012). He served as a member of the Housing Authority
(2001-2009) and was a board director of the Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation
Limited (1999-2009).

B E  REMES » KFPME (R20174F12
A1BEBEREEZT  TH=E2018F11 A30BHER)

BERLEDARRESEH T BREN I AEREE
(2012-2016) ° b BELER Z EKENES S REM
EE BEAAXEEEB(2008-2014) K&
IR 3R 5 (2008-2014) » N BT A ERREE
B & 8 (2009-2013) - ALK=ARKEZESZE
(2009-2013) K B A B R E RSB RANANEZEET R
REZABZEZESZE 8 (2006-2012) » i EHEERE
EZEEZXE (2001-2009) & BEBILIBESFRA
AIMEES/K 8 (1999-2009) °
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Mr David Stannard (re-appointment effective 1 December 2017; term expires on
30 November 2018)

Mr Stannard is a corporate lawyer based in Hong Kong. He was executive
director in charge of the Corporate Finance Division of the Securities and Futures
Commission (SFC) (1999-2001), a member of the Listing Committees of the Main
Board and the Growth Enterprise Market (GEM) of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (SEHK) (2003-2008) and a member of the Standing Committee on
Company Law Reform (2003-2010).

FEREAAE (R2017F12 B 1 B BEERT : A=
2018411 AS0BfEm)

ERTEAEHBE BN AGE - (T HEES
FHEEKERZE S (BES) CEMELMNAIT
% £ (1999-2001) « ERMERZMER AR (R
FT) R AMAIZER EHZE B 5K 8 (2003-2008) &~
AVEREBHBZ B &K E (2003-2010) °

Mr Wong Kai Man, BBS, JP (re-appointment effective 1 December 2016 on the
nomination of the SFC; term expires on 30 November 2018)

Mr Wong was a non-executive director of the SFC (2009-2015) and a member
of the Listing Committee of the GEM of SEHK (1999-2003). He was an audit
partner of PricewaterhouseCoopers, Hong Kong before his retirement in June
2005. He has served/is serving as an independent non-executive director of
several companies listed in Hong Kong. Mr Wong has also served on advisory
committees and statutory bodies established by the Government of the Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region, boards of charities and councils of
universities.

BHRLE  HEFES  AFHLt(HEZSIRE
% MR2016F 12 A1 BEBEERT + THZE20184F
11 530 HfEjm)

EILAEE AEEGMNIENITE S (2009-2015) MHER
FrEIZEMR ETHE B &K 8 (1999-2008) ° I AE S
BEFKESHMBSNESLEEA WK 2005
FeARK - A IR ALRES ETARNBYL
FMITEE - ELEENRBERZERBERITHE
BRI 2 BHE B S RIATHE - IEEFIHME 2
EZRKEHABHRES -

Dr Kelvin Wong, JP (appointment effective 1 December 2015; term expires on
30 November 2018)

Dr Wong is an executive director and a deputy managing director of COSCO
SHIPPING Ports Limited. He is also an independent non-executive director of
seven listed companies in Hong Kong. He is the immediate past chairman of
The Hong Kong Institute of Directors, a non-executive director of the SFC, the
chairman of the Investor Education Centre and a member of the Operations
Review Committee of ICAC. A former member of Main Board and GEM Listing
Committee of SEHK, the Standing Committee on Company Law Reform and the
Corruption Prevention Advisory Committee of ICAC.

BXRAEL > KFHLE(ZER2015F12818 £
HAZ 20184 11 A 30 B @)

EELTATESEENRRAANTEERESS
BEE TRELtHABELTRANBIIEATE
Z-MATEEEERHITIF FESIFATE
T REEHEDOERRRBAZEEE ) TER
HRHEEEERE - MR PAERKEIER ETE
EGAEKE  AREREFBZESERREAE
B SHAZERMAIERS -
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Ms Eirene Yeung (re-appointment effective 1 December 2016; term expires on
30 November 2018)

Ms Yeung is Executive Committee member and the Company Secretary of CK
Asset Holdings Limited.

Ms Yeung is also a member of the SFC (HKEC Listing) Committee of the SFC,
a member of the Listing Committee of the Main Board and GEM of SEHK,
a member of the Advisory Committee on Corruption of the ICAC and Vice
Chairman of the General Committee of The Chamber of Hong Kong Listed
Companies. Ms Yeung is a solicitor of the High Court of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region and a non-practising solicitor of the Senior Courts of
England and Wales.

BR2ELZ+(R20165F12 A1 B BEEERT  THE
20184F 11 A30 B @im)

BREZLETR/RETEZEEERATANTEZES R
BRABWE -

BRINTREEEZEER (BERSMEM)ER
BLE  BRXMEIRKAERLETEZEGKE - &
BABE)SHEAAZERERE UAREBLTA
AREFRKERERETE - BREREBFIITR
I8 7= 0K B 0 2 2 D e A% B I g R A = AR B 3
HZERAD o

Ms Ada Chung, JP (ex-officio) (appointment effective 27 August 2007)

Ms Chung is the Registrar of Companies. As a representative of the Financial
Secretary, Ms Chung is an ex-officio council member of the HKICPA. She is also
a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and the Hong Kong
Institute of Directors. Before her appointment as the Registrar, she was a Deputy
Law Officer of the Department of Justice. Ms Chung is qualified as a certified
public accountant and a barrister-at-law.

BERLZLT  AFHLT(EAKE)(H20074F8 A27
H#E)

BUTRAFGEMERER - E2 L AMKARRR
ROGH  HETESHNMASRESERKE -
WIRRRBRTWEAEREEESTRENERS
8 - ERITNEZERERA @ RERERABRSEE
RE8 - EX L AEHRE M RAREER

Mr Paul F. Winkelmann (ex-officio) (appointment effective 1 April 2016; term
expires on 31 March 2019)

Mr Winkelmann is the Chief Executive Officer of the FRC. He has rich
experience in the accounting profession. He was the partner-in-charge of
PricewaterhouseCoopers’ Risk and Quality team in Greater China (2002-2014)
and was the president of the HKICPA in 2009. He also served as the Chairman
of the Financial Reporting Standards Committee of the HKICPA (2004-2009)
which oversaw the full convergence of Hong Kong’s accounting standards with
the international standards. He is a former member of the Operations Oversight
Committee of the FRC from August 2013 until his appointment as Chief Executive
Officer.

ERERLE (EAKE) (THH2016F4 A1 BEE
201943 A31 AfEim)

BHERCERMBERBDNITRER - hESFE
XTHAEENEER - Y ARERFKEBEEETAIE
BAATPEREERAREEREEZENEEEEA
(2002-2014) * W 2009 F EE BB SIS S
KoM SRETESHMASE N HREED
Z B @R EJF (2004-2009) ' SBEEBSHEIASE
=RHEER S EHEBRF AR ESEES o it ER
BEFERZESWATIRE  THHR 201348 A
REZHEZTATHRESR -
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
HEER

The mission of the FRC is to uphold the quality of financial reporting of listed
entities in Hong Kong by exercising its statutory powers under the Financial
Reporting Council Ordinance (FRCO).

The FRC is committed to high standards of corporate governance and
operates within a comprehensive framework of values and guidelines that
emphasises integrity, proficiency, independence, impartiality, accountability
and transparency. To facilitate effective operations and management of
the organisation, the FRC has adopted the best practices outlined by the
International Federation of Accountants and has in place a clearly defined
governing structure, high standards of conduct, reliable internal control
procedures and appropriate checks and balances.

Organisation Structure
R E

Council

BB E RS

Honorary Advisory Panel

BERERE

M IER BB BT ERBA B ERBDIEODAE T
FUAERED  BOBRTASKKEE LM ARNMSG
EHE R B o

UBERBHNETFENRBEE R R—EER
ME - HEEAEE B RTVRE - RERARE
AENERNEE - RTEBBREEREHE
B ARERMEBE GBS SHRNREER
B WABRIEBMAHNERSIE - BRBNER
SPERAE - RISERVABDIEHIRR R e B R BRI G o

Process Review Panel

BRBEREES

Independent Audit
Oversignt Reform
Committee
BYFEEEE
BEZES

Corporate
Communications
Committee

BBERESS

Finance
Committee

B%ESE

Audit Financial

Investigation
Board

EiTHEREE

Reporting
Review Committee
B 76 BB SR AR =
ZEg

Operations
Oversight
Committee

EFERESE

Remuneration
Committee

FHEES

Financial
Reporting
Review Panel
B 7 B SR =
ZEE
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The Council

The FRC is governed by its Members, who operate as a Council. A
significant majority of Council Members, including the Chairman, are lay
persons, i.e., non-accountants. All members are independent of the audit
profession. This ensures the Council’s independence in carrying out its
functions.

The primary functions of the Council are set out in the FRCO and include

(i)  reviewing complaints concerning non-compliance with accounting
requirements by listed entities as well as complaints concerning
auditing or reporting irregularities by auditors of listed entities;

(i) making enquiries into non-compliance and investigating auditing or
reporting irregularities; and

(iiiy approving and overseeing the policies and activities of boards and
committees established by Council.

The FRC’s Chief Executive Officer (CEQ) is appointed by the Chief
Executive of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region (HKSAR) on
the recommendation of the Council. As at 31 December 2017, there were
11 Members on the Council. Three of these 11 members are nominated
by Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited (HKEX), the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (HKICPA) and the Securities and
Futures Commission (SFC) respectively. The Registrar of Companies or her
representative, and the FRC’s CEO, are ex-officio members.

Council members are generally appointed for a two year term which is
renewable. Procedures are in place to ensure an adequate rotation of
members on an annual basis.

Council members come from a variety of backgrounds with diversified
and relevant skills which includes four accountants, three lawyers and four
members with extensive business experience. While there is no ruling on
gender diversification, two of the eleven members are female. Profiles for
each member can be found on pages 16 to 19 of this report. Not only do
Council members attend meetings of the Council, but each member is
involved in one or more of the underlying committees thus ensuring they are
involved extensively in the affairs of the Council.

MBERRKE

MBERBNEABEEY BERBHER - £

AR E (BIEER) WAL - DR

8 - AREMFARBEBYRETER - BERA
LB B THAL -

RBCIBER DG - RNEHEEBELRE

(i) EHNEBELTERTERSHAENRF
AEBB EMEENZIEMEERTRERS
HWTEITAMNIEF

i) HEBTENEERMEARESRTLER
FENTETARTRS &

(i) BRAEERPEERDR ZEENK
RIEE) °

AEHNITHARBESEITHRERIHREEEARR
HWEZE - BEERBN2017F12 A31 BHKE
KA ER=2REDAEEERHREEME

RAF(BRFT) BEAMAGURESZRPE
%i‘%?ﬂi/\ & (BEE)RELEMT - ARVWMEE
AREDRRAAFMERERIERE - UEER
HITTBUBE, -

VBERBKENEER —RAMF - HRTES
BEEE-REHIEEE  WRERSFHBERHAKE
TR AL o

$%WEX§TH“EIﬁ%REﬁﬁ& B
B CEREMERNZEELCREENHK
ﬁﬁﬁ%lﬁﬁﬁ@%ymmmﬁm B+—
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F16EEE19H - %Tﬁf%%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%é%’
ERBENE2EBT —EXZEEES - EMER
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fizme /\Zli)%$71%
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Members of the Council are legally bound to declare any interests they may
have in a case. Council Members present during deliberations or decision-
making by HKEX, the HKICPA or the SFC relating to cases to be referred
to the FRC are considered as having an interest in that case. In accordance
with the FRCO, Council Members having such an interest may not (a) be
present during any deliberation by the Council, (b) take part in any decision
of the Council, or (c) be given any documents related to the case.

The CEO and his staff manage the operations of the FRC, reporting back to
Council in accordance with the provisions of the procedural manual. Council
in turn gives directives to the CEO and FRC staff, and ensures that the
organisation’s statutory functions are being performed effectively. The roles
of Chairman and CEO are separate and distinct.

Council Meetings

The Council meets once every two months and holds additional meetings
as and when necessary. In addition to discussing specific agenda items,
progress reports on all ongoing cases, management accounts and other
operating statistics are submitted for review at each regular meeting. In
2017, the Council held seven meetings, all of which were conducted in
accordance with the provisions of the FRCO.

Attendance at Council meetings in 2017 was as follows:

T IE R B B AN RME R o AT BE A (LA A B R
JAEOERTR - RBKREBIEBRN - BEGFQ
EABEGEARDENERTARKAES - Xk
DR2EZEBOARRE  —BRAETREMSR
AR - BB BERBG) - EERS
BRI E T A AR (o) HERBK S
ERERZIRE ¢ (o) 2BUBERBKEFEHE
ARTE ¢ 3 (c) EREMARAMT »

TREHLEETEENBERRSNAEERF L
RIERFFMOEXAABERTIE - AR RTT
BaE K B THIBIES - MRARETEBIIEE
HBae - TENARBYREIRTREENAE -

BHHEERDIKEDSH
VHERBKEGMEART—REE  LERF
ZAREINEGE EHEEL BT IRBENE
BIEBZH EREBHHEREERE B2
fRE REMEFRBRTERIEZSEMN - ARKER
2017 HABIT T EREH - A SSRGS
PE R R R DE IR ST ©

BISERBREN 2017 FHEZHERNT ¢

Meetings attended/held

SRR BIRE
Dr John Poon, BBS, JP (Chairman) EMEBEL  EHEE - AT+ (FR) 7/7
Mr Chan Tze Ching, BBS, JP BRFEEE  RAEFEE - KM+ 6/7
Mr Wilson Fung RRELE 77
Mr Nicholas Sallnow-Smith KBRS A 5/7
Mr Sin Chung Kai, SBS, JP BEEE  BREFAEE - KFHL 6/7
Mr David Stannard BERE A 6/7
Mr Wong Kai Man, BBS, JP HRURAELE  MEFIEE - KTt 6/7
Dr Kelvin Wong, JP BAMELT  KFHLT 5/7
Ms Eirene Yeung B Lt 5/7
Ms Ada Chung, JP (ex-officio) ERRRET  AFHLT(EAKE) 7
Mr Paul F. Winkelmann (CEO) (ex-officio) e R LA (FTERARED) (BAKE) 6/7

The average attendance rate at meetings was 86%.
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Pursuant to the FRCO, the Chief Executive of the HKSAR may appoint
temporary members to the FRC to serve on a rotating basis with respect
to cases whereby the Council is not able to meet the statutory quorum in
relation to matters in which members had disclosed their interests. During
2017, the following persons were the temporary members of the FRC:

Mr Vincent Duhamel
Mr Stephen Hung?
Mr Edward Kwan, MH
Ms Rosita Lee?

Mr Michael Scales

Mr MT Shum™, SBS
Ms Anna Wong

Retired as temporary member with effect from 30 November 2017.
2 Appointed with effect from 1 December 2017.

The in-house General Counsel attends all Council meetings, and has been
appointed as the Secretary of the meetings. Minutes of meetings are
circulated to the Chairman for review and comment and then to all members
for comment. All members have access to the General Counsel.

In 2017, while there was a vacancy in the General Counsel position, the
Deputy CEO acted as Secretary to the Council meetings and Council
members were provided access to external legal counsel when necessary.

Council Committees

The Council has five committees, the responsibilities of which are described
below. These committees meet as necessary on a periodic basis. Each
committee operates according to its own terms of reference. Information on
the number of meetings held and attendance rates are set out in the tables
below.

Each Committee has a majority of Council members and at least one
Honorary Advisor to ensure appropriate checks and balances across the
operations of the FRC. The Operations Oversight Committee also has other
members comprising lay persons, together with those with accounting
and auditing experience. Where authority can be delegated under the
FRCO, each committee is accountable to the Council for its decisions.
Where delegation is not permissible, each committee is accountable for its
recommendations to Council.

The terms of reference of each committee are reviewed from time to time in
light of working needs.

BB B IERBIEG ) BEBFRITHREITRE

AZEHRIKE - EEMBREREKE REER
WA RUBURBETT & 85 E A ARITA BBkAE
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A TIALAREKE
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BREEE  KREFS
Fmiftc L2
/IXT‘?E$1 REFIEE
BERRRL

T R2017F 11 B 30 HEHMLER AL B BRI -
2 A2017E12 A1 BEEE -

REOREERERDFEMEMFERBKE SR
ERERERSHEWE - SRLBRAXEZETRFUHRE
BIRATRE - BREBREEMNERER - 8KE
R B R BAERAY o

M2017F - HRNERERBA LR - gEw

EHRITHARESE  MRAZERIEERER
RERBTABKE -

BBERRBTEES

==
UBERBTRAEMEZRS - HEEHANT - %
EZEeATHINEAFTERETEH - REEE
RIBHBEREEF -  ARASHRBTABEHEE
MERER TR °

BEZBEMRITINEN RV KERBKE - B
BEZI—MNBEBR  UERABHNEERRE
BIHIETIEbE o WO - BIFERLZEGHNNEREA

FETREHEBIAL - BREFEIAL - 0B
BERBEOVETRABEENERTEZET  BH
ZEEAHNHRRBENMABKEELRN - 1
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CORPO RATE GOVERNANCE (continued)
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Corporate Communications Committee (CCC)

KEEMEES

Back row (from left): Mr Sin Chung Kai, SBS, JP, Ms Ada Chung, JP, Ms Eirene Yeung, and Mr Michael Scales
BEE(ICRE) « BipfdkieE  REFEE - AFMT - EBRALT ATFHT - BRSaTRiERREE

Front row (from left): Mr Chan Tze Ching, BBS, JP (Chairman) and Mr Paul F. Winkelmann (ex-officio)
RigE (7o) « BRFEBUEAL @ AEFEE - K Pt (XF) MEEREL (ERKE)

Terms of reference

e To formulate corporate communications policies and strategies to
increase publicity about the work of the FRC.

e To oversee the implementation of corporate communications strategies
approved by the Council, and to utilise appropriate communications
tools, such as press statements, publications, electronic communications
and conferences, to reach the media and external parties.

e To recommend an annual promotion plan and budget to the Council.

e To oversee the review and updating of the FRC website layouts
and contents, printed brochures, promotional materials and other
publications of the FRC.

e To oversee publicity campaigns launched from time to time by the FRC.

e To decide on matters which the Council delegates from time to time.

Attendance at CCC meetings in 2017 was as follows:

B

o FIERBEABERLER NARASEARNT
e

o EEBEARKEZAENKEEMRENNT - N
MEBRAENRE (WHERE - T - EFBH
N&#%E) BELMINEDEE

s RARKERXFEEEIINEE -
s EBAMARMEARREAR IMi¥ =
EER KM AR TR E R -

EEARTERRNEFEED -
s HMARKETKREZEMEEIELIRE -

BIBENESER 2017 FHEFLEFENT -

Meetings attended/held

BRHE BIRE

Mr Chan Tze Ching, BBS, JP (Chairman) BRFBSEE  RFIEZE - KFAL(ERF) 5/5
Ms Ada Chung, JP BB T KAFHL 5/5
Mr Michael Scales MkE s 2/5
Mr Sin Chung Kai, SBS, JP BEEE  REFEE - KFMHL 4/5
Ms Eirene Yeung e 2+ 4/5
Mr Paul F. Winkelmann (CEO) (ex-officio) BRI A (TTHRER) (BEAKE) 5/5
Average attendance rate FHHEE 83%
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Finance Committee (FC)

Back row (from left): Dr PM Kam, BBS Mr David Stannard and Mr Wilson Fung
(o) : HEXigL - AEFEE  AERAERBSERELE

Front row (from left): Mr Paul F. Winkelmann (ex-officio) and Dr Kelvin Wong, JP (Chairman)

AIBE(ERR) - BHERAL (BAKR) RERKEEL - KAFPMHL (F)

Terms of reference BrEsE

To review the FRC’s treasury, internal control, and financial and risk
management policies and strategies.

To approve tenders for procurement with an estimated value exceeding
HK$500,000 (other than legal services relating to vetting of investigation
or enquiry reports).

To advise the FRC on the short, medium and long term financial
implications of the Council’s strategic plans.

To review and make recommendations to the FRC on the Council’s

EZRARBHEY - ARMEGARTBERRE
IR BUR KRR -

At S BB B THRERE (EHE
BlERERREERERRIN)

A DRI B E’J’Eﬂﬁ RHEIR RIS
2 RARKERHEER

EHABNFERE LAF‘VKEEXETELW

annual budget.

e To review the FRC’s draft annual financial statements before o ZBEABREEHERENER @ UIRZIAKNEHK
submission to the Council. BAE -
e To provide advice on the future funding model of the FRC once the o REVEAEEXNERZZHREZER  RES
independent audit oversight reform proposal is finalised. AKEHERESEANESR
e To decide on matters which the Council delegates from time to time. o HMABRKETHREENEZEIELIRAT °
Attendance at FC meetings in 2017 was as follows: BIBEZEEER2017 FHEZLHEFUT :
Meetings attended/held
SRHE BT
Dr Kelvin Wong, JP (Chairman) mAMEL  KFat (EF) 3/3
Mr Wilson Fung RRELE 3/3
Dr PM Kam, BBS Hg L fEmES 2/3
Mr David Stannard MREERE A 3/3
Mr Paul F. Winkelmann (CEO) (ex-officio) ERE R E (TTHRR) (EAKE) 3/3
Average attendance rate FH R 93%
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Back row (from left): Dr Kelvin Wong, JP, Mr Sin Chung Kai, SBS, JP, Mr Nicholas Sallnow-Smith, Mr Eugene Fung, SC,

and Mr Chew Fook Aun

&P (i) : ERAIEL - NFHL - BEEE  REFER - AFHLT - HFEAxE

IBERSE - BRKNER R AR EE

Front row (from left): Mr Paul F. Winkelmann (ex-officio), Dr John Poon, BBS, JP (Chairman) and Mr David Stannard

AIBE(ZR) - BHERAA (BAKE)  BEHARL - XHES - KPAL (EF) gz

Terms of reference

To provide advice to the FRC and the staff on matters related to
the reform of auditor oversight systems in Hong Kong (the Reform),
including but not limited to the registration, inspection, investigation and
sanction of auditors.

To oversee the work of FRC staff in relation to the Reform, including
but not limited to the assumption of statutory powers for the inspection
of listed company auditors and the transition arrangements relating
to audit inspection and related legislative amendments; and to ensure
that the activities undertaken by the staff are in accordance with the
directives of the Council and the agreed timeline.

To receive and consider regular progress reports from the staff on the
progress of the Reform.

To undertake specific tasks related to the Reform as required by the Council.
To decide on matters which the Council delegates from time to time.

Attendance at IAORC meetings in 2017 was as follows:

e

B

HREEENTEERENE (ZNE)FH B
BRI ERADHY T E%‘—% CHERED
MAREEETRHEER

EBRARMNE I RZNEMBITNIIE B
1E|TKEE’\T§* B A 8% BA A A E B

- B ERNBERHERBEAEE I
HEE{%E\IEEE”$)%/5X,\?E%IW % IE A9BSR
FETIE-

BEEREEET
W -

BRRARKERNER - ITARERBNEELE -

HABKE TR EEIEHIRE °

ThER R A R R AR E B

BUETEENEZEESR017FENEZ HERUT -

Meetings attended/held

ERHEBITRK
Dr John Poon, BBS, JP (Chairman) EAEBRELE  AEFEES - KM (EFFE) 3/3
Mr Chew Fook Aun ARLEE 3/3
Mr Eugene Fung, SC TERERB ST A - BIR AR 1/3
Mr Nicholas Sallnow-Smith émﬁﬂﬁ‘ai 3/3
Mr Sin Chung Kai, SBS, JP BEEE  REFEE - KFHL 2/3
Mr David Stannard RS 3/3
Dr Kelvin Wong, JP HEAHEL  KFaL 3/8
Mr Paul F. Winkelmann (CEQ) (ex-officio) B REAE (ITHBER) (BERKE) 2/3
Average attendance rate FHHER 83%
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Operations Oversight Committee (OOC)

Back row (from left): Mr Vincent Duhamel, Mr Jamie Allen, Mr Nicholas Sallnow-Smith, Mr Stephen Taylor, Mr Kenneth Morrison, and

Mr Wilson Fung

BHE(ARR)  fOEXRAE - MERRLLE « KB - Stephen Taylor B4  SUB (SR RIS RB LA
Front row (from left): Mr Wong Kai Man, BBS, JP (Chairman), Mr Paul F. Winkelmann (ex-officio), and Mr Chan Tze Ching, BBS, JP

AIBE (Z#2)

Terms of reference

To formulate policies, strategies, guidelines and procedures for the
operation of the FRC.

To provide advice to the FRC and its operational staff on technical and
business issues.

To consider the progress of enquiries, investigations, complaints and
reviews currently being dealt with by staff.

To consider enquiry reports approved by the Financial Reporting
Review Committees before submission to the Council.

To consider investigation reports approved by the Audit Investigation
Board before submission to the Council.

To consider recommendations in the complaint/review assessment
reports before submission to the Council, and to endorse those
complaint/review assessment reports requiring no follow-up action.
To consider and approve recommendations made in the review
handling reports in relation to financial statements selected for review
under the financial statements review programme.

To decide on matters which the Council delegates from time to time.

Attendance at OOC meetings in 2017 was as follows:

CERREALE  MEFER  ATHL (TR  BHEREE(BAKE) RRFEEL  AEFLES - KFHL

BiEsE

HERBREEBER - R - 155 R -

MARRRTEATHENE TIRERMTERE
HHEMNER -
EZETEREENSH AL - KFLEM
TEREE -
EFRUBERBITZESHENEARE
NRRABKERE -
EFCEAABCTESHAENAERE - UR
RARBKRERE -
EBRFEHEREFTEARESE - URER
ABKELE - BEHEFTERIRETHNE
#FEHERE

EF BB B RREMTEHENTBRED
EMRIEREFTH AR

HABEE NRHRFENFEIEHIRE °

BIFEFRZEER2017 FHEZE L EFEWT -

Meetings attended/held

ERHEBIRK
Mr Wong Kai Man, BBS, JP (Chairman) ERRELAE  AEFAEE - KFEMLT(EFE) 6/6
Mr Jamie Allen NHEREE 5/6
Mr Chan Tze Ching, BBS, JP BRFEUEAE - EKHES - KAFM+ 5/6
Mr Vincent Duhamel* MIE XA 2/6
Mr Wilson Fung IBHEA 5/6
Mr Kenneth Morrison NiBEEE 5/6
Mr Nicholas Sallnow-Smith ErJKBR 5/6
Mr Stephen Taylor Stephen Taylor %4 4/6
Mr Paul F. Winkelmann (CEO) (ex-officio) s R E FTHAREL) (BAKE 6/6
Average attendance rate FHHER 80%

1

Resigned with effect from 1 November 2017

1

R2017F 11 B 1 B EHE
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Remuneration Committee (RC)

Back row (from left): Ms Eirene Yeung, Mr Roger Best, JP and Mr Nicholas Sallnow-Smith

BEE (i) : HBREZRt » BMBEL - KM REFKHATE

Front row (from left): Mr Paul F. Winkelmann (ex-officio) and Dr John Poon, BBS, JP (Chairman)
AIgE () - FREREE (ERKE) REEARL - XFAESE - AFML (ER)

Terms of reference

To formulate remuneration policies, strategies, guidelines and
procedures for the operation of the FRC in accordance with all
applicable legal and regulatory requirements.

To make recommendations to the FRC on staffing, remuneration and
employment policies and strategies including salary structure, terms
and conditions of employment, and staff fringe benefits.

To make recommendations on the annual pay adjustment and the
amount of variable compensation payable to individual staff members.
To make recommendations on the amount of variable compensation
payable to the CEO.

To decide on matters which may be delegated by the Council from

time to time.

Attendance at RC meetings in 2017 was as follows:

B
s REMEERMEZLEERTE  HEEHEARE
EEHIF BN - A - f55I M2 -

s HEWETHRE HH- BRARERKE
He BIEFHHRE BRGERRIGHENE TR
A AABKERHEESR

o IRGUABIER S ey FE H o B AT B Fr B
TRNER o

o REBBITBRAZENIBFHEBRNES -

o HARKETEZRFENFEFELIRE °

FHWESER2017 EHEZHEFUT -

Meetings attended/held

ERHEBITRK
Dr John Poon, BBS, JP (Chairman) EAERRE L EFEE  ATF@E(EF) 3/3
Mr Roger Best, JP EOmEST A - KFaR L 2/3
Mr Nicholas Sallnow-Smith BRIk R e A 3/3
Ms Eirene Yeung tHiRE 2+ 3/3
Mr Paul F. Winkelmann (CEO) (ex-officio) BRI A (TTHEE) (BEARKE) 3/3
Average attendance rate FHHFEE 93%
Operations
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Enquiry - Financial Reporting Review Panel and Committee

In cases where the FRC believes there may be non-compliance with
accounting requirements in relation to a listed entity, the Council may
appoint a FRRC to conduct an enquiry. The committee consists of a Panel
Convenor as Chairman, and at least four other members of the Financial
Reporting Review Panel (FRRP).

Under the powers vested in it under section 43 of the FRCO, the FRRC may
require relevant persons to produce records and documents and provide
information and explanations for the purpose of an enquiry.

Members of the FRRP are appointed by the Chief Executive of the HKSAR
in consultation with the Council. As at 31 December 2017, the FRRP had 45
members, including seven Convenors. They are appointed based on their
experience in accounting, auditing, finance, banking, law, administration,
or management. A list of FRRP members can be found in the section
“Membership of Board and Panels” of this annual report.

Investigation — Audit Investigation Board (AIB)

The Council may direct the AIB to conduct investigations into possible
auditing or reporting irregularities by auditors in relation to listed entities.
Under the powers vested in it under sections 25, 26, 27 and 28 of the FRCO,
the AIB may require relevant persons to produce records and documents,
supply information and provide explanations for the purposes of the
investigation.

The CEO of the FRC is the ex-officio Chairman of the AIB. Other members of
the AIB, who are normally staff members of the FRC, are appointed by the
Council. A list of AIB members can be found in the section “Membership of
Board and Panels” of this annual report.

In 2017, the AIB completed 11 investigation cases. It also dealt with 37
investigation cases brought forward from the previous year and 14 cases
initiated during the year.

Internal Controls

The FRC maintains an effective internal control system that includes a
clear organisational structure, well-defined levels of authority, and proper
segregation of duties. The FRC assigns a director to take charge of each
case from the moment investigations/enquiries commence.
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The FRC regularly reviews all its policies and guidelines relating to personnel
administration, procurement, authorisation of transactions, and the
safeguarding of its assets.

Specific forms are completed by Council members, committee members
and staff in respect of each case to ensure conflicts are declared and
identified. Once declared, all papers issued reflect any such conflicts.

Code of Conduct

FRC staff members are required to adhere to our code of conduct when
carrying out any role on behalf of the FRC. Our code of conduct specifies
standards to be followed in areas that may involve conflicts of interest,
confidentiality of information, personal investments and data protection.
This includes the need for staff members to make regular declarations of
their own and their spouse’s investments, and to notify any changes in their
portfolio.

The FRC’s code of conduct is reviewed and updated on a regular basis
to ensure that it remains consistent with the best practices currently being
applied across the areas in which the FRC operates.

Communications with Stakeholders

The FRC actively communicates with stakeholders, including its funding
parties, the accounting and auditing profession, its regulatory counterparts,
and the general investing public.

Information disseminated by the FRC is user-friendly and easily accessible.
The FRC publishes annual reports and eNews to keep stakeholders
informed about the progress of its work and its development. Operations
statistics and press releases about completed cases are regularly posted on
the FRC website (www.frc.org.hk).

The FRC has also set up official pages on certain social media channels

to enable interested parties to connect with the FRC in a more interactive
manner.

Financial Reporting Council Annual Report 2017
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Checks and Balances
Accountability and Audit

The FRC has adopted a strict audit process. The FRC’s annual budget must
be endorsed by the Council. The Secretary for Financial Services and the
Treasury then reviews and approves the FRC’s annual estimates of income
and expenditure.

The financial statements of the FRC are audited by the Government’s
Director of Audit; annual reports are submitted to the Secretary for Financial
Services and the Treasury and tabled at the Legislative Council. The FRC
attends the meeting of the Legislative Council Panel on Financial Affairs and
presents a progress report annually.

Process Review Panel (PRP)

The FRC has its work scrutinised by a PRP, the aim of which is to ensure
that individual cases have been dealt with consistently, and that all actions
and decisions taken are in line with internal procedures and guidelines.
The PRP issues an annual report containing the conclusions of its review,
together with suggestions for improvements. Appointments to the PRP are
approved by the Chief Executive of the HKSAR.

Ombudsman

The Ombudsman also indirectly oversees the work of the FRC by dealing
with any public complaints regarding alleged maladministration made
against the FRC and its staff. The FRC did not receive any enquiries from the
Ombudsman in 2017.

Best Practice

While the FRC is not obliged to comply with any particular corporate
governance codes, it voluntarily complies with various principles and code
provisions where considered relevant.
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Audit Commission
The Government of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region

Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Financial Reporting Council

Opinion

| have audited the financial statements of the Financial Reporting Council
set out on pages 35 to 49, which comprise the statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2017, and the statement of comprehensive
income, statement of changes in funds and statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including significant
accounting policies.

In my opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Financial Reporting Council as at 31 December 2017,
and of its results of operations and cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and have
been properly prepared in accordance with section 18(2) of the Financial
Reporting Council Ordinance (Cap. 588).

Basis for opinion

| conducted my audit in accordance with section 19(1) of the Financial
Reporting Council Ordinance and the Audit Commission auditing
standards. My responsibilities under those standards are further described
in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
section of my report. | am independent of the Financial Reporting Council
in accordance with those standards, and | have fulfilled my other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with those standards. | believe that the audit
evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
my opinion.

Other information

The Financial Reporting Council is responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises all the information included in the
Financial Reporting Council’s 2017 Annual Report, other than the financial
statements and my auditor’s report thereon.

Financial Reporting Council Annual Report 2017
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My opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information
and | do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with my audit of the financial statements, my responsibility
is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or
my knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work | have performed, | conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, | am required to report that
fact. | have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Financial Reporting Council

for the financial statements

The Financial Reporting Council is responsible for the preparation of
the financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards and section 18(2) of
the Financial Reporting Council Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the Financial Reporting Council determines is necessary to enable
the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Financial Reporting Council
is responsible for assessing its ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting.

The Financial Reporting Council is assisted by its Finance Committee
in discharging its responsibilities for overseeing the financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
the Audit Commission auditing standards will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with the Audit Commission auditing
standards, | exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. | also:

— identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control;

— obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Financial Reporting Council’s internal control;

— evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the Financial Reporting Council;

— conclude on the appropriateness of the Financial Reporting Council’s
use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Financial Reporting Council’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If | conclude that a material uncertainty exists, | am required to
draw attention in my auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify my opinion. My conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of my auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Financial Reporting Council to cease to
continue as a going concern; and

— evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

Kenneth Ho Audit Commission
Assistant Director of Audit 26th Floor
for Director of Audit Immigration Tower

7 Gloucester Road
15 March 2018 Wanchai, Hong Kong
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE mEW AR
INCOME
For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZE2017F12 A1 HILFE
(Amounts expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (£BLUBTLYIR)
Note
ks 2017 2016
Income WA
Annual contribution BEEAES 4 30,825,900 29,358,000
Interest income F B U A 5 596,414 593,740
Recovery of costs of investigations FEK AW 159,628 253,509
Gain on disposal of office furniture, BEEMAZERE - EKER
fixtures and equipment B - 3,280
31,581,942 30,208,529
Expenditure ]
Staff costs BITRA 6 (25,409,620) (23,435,234)
Audit oversight research and FIEEMELAEZ S
related expenses 7 (413,560) (1,991,131)
Corporate communications expenses  #H& & 3 H 8 (1,045,403) (522,635)
Legal and professional fees EERBEER (1,851,375) (127,813)
Depreciation charge weESH 11 (255,598) (148,640)
Write off of accounts receivable JFE UK BR SR 3B - (24,900)
Other operating expenses Htha @z H 9 (752,238) (1,077,192)
(29,727,794) (27,327,545)

Surplus and total comprehensive FRABBRRAFZEWA
income for the year 1,854,148 2,880,984

The notes on pages 39 to 49 form part of these financial statements. F OB E 49 BT AR BHREN—FH -
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 31 December 2017
(Amounts expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

B AEAR L 3%
R2017F12 A31 H
(EEAETTHIR)

Note

M 2017 2016
Non-current assets FREEE
Office furniture, fixtures and equipment A ERE - HE L& E 11 279,646 371,844
Current assets RBEEE
Receivables and prepayments JIE WS BR 3R I FE A FR0R 12 594,755 818,422
Time deposits with original maturities R Z|H1 B % % = 1A B 89 F BifF

greater than three months 13 38,000,000 38,000,000

Cash and cash equivalents BekReEEY 14 7,753,247 4,873,300
Total current assets RBEELAE 46,348,002 43,691,722
Current liabilities BiEL=NE
Accounts payable and accruals JEfTIRFA R BRI E A (3,340,813) (2,630,879)
Net current assets MBEEEFE 43,007,189 41,060,843
Net assets BEEFE 43,286,835 41,432,687
Funds =
General fund —REL 15 23,286,835 21,432,687
Reserve fund HHEe 15 20,000,000 20,000,000
Total funds wEe 43,286,835 41,432,687

Approved and authorised for issue by the Financial Reporting Council on A 20184F 3 5 15 BIER S IE SR B HEAE K %A T35

15 March 2018

fod 7 t)eikid

Mr Paul F. Winkelmann  #i#R %4
Chief Executive Officer 7TIECAE#,

Dr John Poon, BBS, JP BEBEEBL  EFEE  AFHL

Chairman F /&
F 9B E 49 BHMIsE AR IEREN—F D o

The notes on pages 39 to 49 form part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FUNDS

For the year ended 31 December 2017
(Amounts expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

ey TIES
HZE2017F 12 A31 HILFE
(&FUETTIIR)

General fund Reserve fund Total funds

—-RES fAEe wEd

At 1 January 2016 R2016F1 A1 H 18,651,703 20,000,000 38,551,703
Surplus and total comprehensive 2016 fFF & Kk 4434

income for 2016 WA 2,880,984 - 2,880,984

At 31 December 2016 H20164F 12 431 H 21,432,687 20,000,000 41,432,687

At 1 January 2017 R2017F1A1H 21,432,687 20,000,000 41,432,687
Surplus and total comprehensive 2017 R R E4RE

income for 2017 A 1,854,148 - 1,854,148

At 31 December 2017 M2017F12 831 H 23,286,835 20,000,000 43,286,835

The notes on pages 39 to 49 form part of these financial statements.

FEI0EE 4 EMMERATBRERN —#D o
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS WERER
For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZE2017F12 A31HILFE
(Amounts expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (EEAETTHIR)
Note
ik 2017 2016

Cash flows from operating activities K& ETBEENRESARE

Surplus for the year FREH 1,854,148 2,880,984
Adjustments for: FEIFE :
Depreciation charge e 255,598 148,640
Interest income FEMA (596,414) (5693,740)
Gain on disposal of office furniture, BERAZERA -EER
fixtures and equipment B - (3,280)
1,513,332 2,432,604
Changes in working capital: BELEeH
Increase in receivables FEU R SR R FEAT 3RIE
and prepayments # 0 (63,672) (2,743)
Increase/(decrease) in accounts JETIRR R ERTE A
payable and accruals En Cid) 641,634 (165,019)
Net cash inflow from operating RETHEENRESRANTE
activities 2,091,294 2,264,842

Cash flows from investing activities ?x‘%éib}*iﬂ’ﬁﬁ%uug

Payment for the purchase of office BENAERA RKER

furniture, fixtures and equipment IR (95,100) (107,634)
Interest received BUF & 883,753 499,059
Increase in time deposits with original ~ REIE A Z W =8 A 89 F £

maturities greater than three months ~ 7FF3E 0 - (4,000,000)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from BRETHELENRSE

investing activities RN (R B4 788,653 (3,608,575)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash RBERBRESEEYEMN

and cash equivalents ORA) F58 2,879,947 (1,343,733)
Cash and cash equivalents M1A1AZRERREEEY

at 1 January 4,873,300 6,217,033
Cash and cash equivalents M12A3NBZHEeREEE

at 31 December B9 14 7,753,247 4,873,300
The notes on pages 39 to 49 form part of these financial statements. F 9B E 49 BT AR BHREN—F S -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2017
(Amounts expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(GY)

(b)

General Information

The Financial Reporting Council (FRC) was established in Hong Kong
in 2006 under the Financial Reporting Council Ordinance (Cap 588)
(FRCO). Its office address is 29th Floor, High Block, Queensway
Government Offices, 66 Queensway, Hong Kong.

Principal Activities

As set out in the FRCO, the FRC is empowered to conduct
investigations concerning auditing and reporting irregularities by
auditors of entities listed in Hong Kong, and to make enquiries into
non-compliance with accounting requirements by listed entities in
Hong Kong.

Statement of Compliance and Basis of
Preparation of Financial Statements
Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs).

Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical
cost convention and are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is the
functional currency of the FRC.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRSs
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and
various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the
judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

BB R MY RE

HZE2017F 12 A31 HILFE
(&FUETTIIR)

(@)

(b)

— R
B 745 P& 3R /5 72 2006 FARAEC BA 1K IE =R B G 051)
(5£588% ) ERBRY - Hitut AR ESE
EOOHREEBBNAESE29E -

FEEH

KBTS E SR B IGBID RS - BIISE R B
ETHROREE LT ERNZBENERET R
EHRHEOTETRETRE  ARREE
ERERTEREHARENEERMASH -

SREBARMBRRERELE

BREH
IR TR B B S 3RS R R LM
B o

mBLEXE
AP BRRERIBE LKA L RS - WLAR
BERRHNINEEERTIIR °

BIEEHERETT S BIFR I 15 RS R RO B 75
BRE - BHEASTHRBRAOTZE - A
RHEE - AfFf - WMAMXHORESEE
PRV E - (R HIET - AT AR o ELefh
SHRERRER R BB AT EBRMZEE RIS
MARBR/EENEMRARMIEL - MASER
TIREHIE B Al @A B LZERBBEMIR
ESNEEMREREENEE - BRE
FIREA BIMNRZ AT
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(b)

Statement of Compliance and Basis of
Preparation of Financial Statements (continued)
Basis of preparation (continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revision to an accounting estimate is recognised in the
period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

There are no critical accounting judgements involved in the application
of IFRSs by the FRC. There are also no key assumptions concerning
the future, or other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the next
year.

Annual Contribution

The annual contribution is the principal source of revenue, which is
unconditional and non-refundable. It is measured at the fair value
of consideration received or receivable and is recognised when it
becomes receivable.

The Companies Registry Trading Fund (CRTF), the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (HKICPA), the Securities
and Futures Commission (SFC) and the Hong Kong Exchanges and
Clearing Limited (HKEX) signed a Memorandum of Understanding
(MoU) regarding the funding arrangements of the FRC up to and
including the 2019 financial year. Each party agreed to contribute an
annual amount of $7.7 million to the FRC in 2017 (2016: $7.3 million)
for the recurring expenditure. To cater for inflation adjustments and
to provide greater certainty to the FRC, the annual contribution from
each party shall be increased to approximately $8.1 million for 2018
and approximately $8.5 million for 2019.

The office premises of the FRC are provided by the CRTF at a nominal
rent of $1 per annum. All the related utility and sewage charges,
outgoings, costs and expenses incurred in repairing, maintaining and
managing the office premises are borne by the CRTF.

Interest Income

Interest income was earned from time deposits and savings account.
Interest income is recognised on an accruals basis using the effective
interest method.

Financial Reporting Council Annual Report 2017
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Staff Costs 6. EITHA

2017 2016
Salaries, variable pay, bonuses N - FEENE - fEAT

and gratuities rE® 23,207,359 21,710,691
MPF contributions SR AE SR 845,031 683,484
Staff recruitment expenses BEETXIH 512,353 320,562
Medical and life insurance BEERASRE 516,235 499,936
Staff training and development BTN ER 136,607 79,204
Others Hith 192,035 141,357
25,409,620 23,435,234

Salaries, variable pay, bonuses, gratuities and paid annual leave are
accrued in the period in which the employees rendered the associated
services. Bonuses are recognised when the FRC has a present legal
or constructive obligation to make such payments as a result of past
events and a reliable estimate can be made.

Contributions to the Mandatory Provident Fund (MPF) scheme are
recognised as an expense when employees have rendered services
entitling them to the contributions. Contributions are made based
on 5 percent of the employees’ gross salaries, except for the Chief
Executive Officer (CEO) for whom only mandatory contributions are
made. The assets of the MPF scheme are held separately from those
of the FRC in an independently administered fund. The employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed into the
MPF scheme, except for the employer voluntary contributions, which
are refunded to the FRC when the employee leaves employment prior
to the contributions vesting fully.

B FPME - B4 EERBEFFRRY
B TRHMARMREHNER - HEBEER
i AHE T IR B IEAL R A RS E B
AR PR & BRRE SRR SEb b AT A - S RERRTE
AER -

BERERUREMZEARBIEATEFBIH
EF - (R B IR AR R RIS B FERR R ST
oo BR TEREFL @S AT
Sh - R TVIRERBHMONE D 2 REE -
BHMEAEEENEERYFERRNE
ENEA  THBIEENESRE - &
THFN A TR DB EIRANEZR
KRB ORISR - EEEMERIEEH
R ERBREZAEBEENEATEREA
BRT - AREBMEERS o
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6. Staff Costs (continued) 6. BTN (5)
Except for the CEO, Council members are not remunerated. The MRITEUEE SN - BITSER B B WERMS -
above staff costs included the emoluments of the CEO as stated A FEIRADBIE TR TEHERINE
below:
2017
Salary and MPF Medical
variable pay contributions insurance Total
SR
FHREEME AESHIN BRERE 4z
Paul F. Winkelmann EE R 4,200,000 18,000 - 4,218,000
2016
Salaries and MPF Medical
variable pay contributions insurance Total
o i 1
FMREEe AESER BERR 4z
Paul F. Winkelmann BIRER T 3,132,012 13,500 - 3,145,512
Mark Dickens 2 IE B2 918,160 6,000 6,332 930,492
4,050,172 19,500 6,332 4,076,004
" Appointed with effect from 1 April 2016 ! R2016%F 481 HEZF
2 Retired on 31 March 2016 2 R2016 43 A 31 HiR Mk
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10.

Audit Oversight Research and Related Expenses 7.

During 2016 and 2017, a consultancy firm was engaged to carry
out a benchmarking study of the operations of four major auditor
oversight regimes. This project was approximately 50% completed
as at 2016 year end and was fully completed in 2017. In 2016, the
expenditure also included costs related to an update report on the
auditor oversight regime prepared by that consultancy firm.

BiTEEMEREESZ L
M2016F k2017 F - —REMARIEZT
FEVOE = 22 A B B B (R I TR A
7T o HEEEMREN TIEEE2016 FFED
SRR —¥ 0 W 2017 FARTHAK © 2016
FHXHBENE—(DHZERATRETE
EREHIIEL B AT E BRI

Corporate Communications Expenses 8. MEEMZE
2017 2016
Promotion and public education HERDEHE 468,669 251,556
10th anniversary event 10 AF/EE 309,940 -
Publications AR T 149,798 203,075
Others HAh 116,996 68,004
1,045,403 522,635

Other Operating Expenses 9. Hitt&EXH
2017 2016
Conferences and duty visits SEMLERER 59,279 307,198
Professional liability insurance BEEERE 25,150 25,150
Office equipment and furniture expensed MAERBEREREME 105,556 64,858
Printing, stationery and office expenses TED » XA RMAEREZ 562,253 679,986
752,238 1,077,192

In accordance with section 19 of the FRCO, the financial statements
of the FRC are audited by the Director of Audit. No fee is charged for
this service.

Taxation 10.

Pursuant to section 16 of the FRCO, the FRC is exempt from taxation
under the Inland Revenue Ordinance (Cap 112).

RBCHEERBIRPDE 1915 - MIBERD
M BRRBBAFBZRARER  BPY
BEWEEAIREER °

BiE

RIB TS ERBIEDDFE 1615 - MIFERF
e MBEARB(RBED) (B1128) 8
o
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11. Office Furniture, Fixtures and Equipment 1. PAERE - RERRHE

Office
furniture Other
and office
fixtures Computers equipment Total
WAE Hith
HAREER B BMAERE Hith
Cost A
At 1 January 2016 »m20164F1H1H 502,074 550,172 144,891 1,197,137
Additions BA 5,000 50,164 60,750 115,914
Disposals BE - (8,226) (56,500) (64,726)
At 31 December 2016 201612 H31H 507,074 592,110 149,141 1,248,325
At 1 January 2017 R2017F1 /818 507,074 592,110 149,141 1,248,325
Additions BA 93,300 70,100 - 163,400
At 31 December 2017 M"2017F12H831H 600,374 662,210 149,141 1,411,725
Accumulated depreciation = Z:3HiFE
At 1 January 2016 ®20164F1A1H (166,517) (505,517) (120,5833) (792,567)
Charge for the year FARAZMH (102,574) (34,929) (11,137) (148,640)
Written back on disposals BB I - 8,226 56,500 64,726
At 31 December 2016 R20164F 12 A31H (269,091) (632,220) (75,170) (876,481)
At 1 January 2017 M®2017F1A1H (269,091) (632,220) (75,170) (876,481)
Charge for the year FAZH (200,106) (38,914) (16,578) (255,598)
At 31 December 2017 R2017%F12H831H (469,197) (571,134) (91,748) (1,132,079)
Net book value IRMEFE
At 31 December 2017 MA2017%F12H831H 131,177 91,076 57,393 279,646
At 31 December 2016 12016412 A31H 237,983 59,890 73,971 371,844

Financial Reporting Council Annual Report 2017
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11. Office Furniture, Fixtures and Equipment

(continued)

Office furniture, fixtures and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any, except that
items costing less than $5,000 are expensed when incurred. The cost
of an item of office furniture, fixtures and equipment comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset
to the location and condition necessary for its intended use.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the
cost of each item of office furniture, fixtures and equipment over its
estimated useful life after considering its estimated residual value. The
respective useful lives are as follows:

Office furniture and fixtures
Computers
Other office equipment

1to 10 years
3 years
7 years

Residual values, useful lives and depreciation method are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at least at the end of each reporting
period.

An item of office furniture, fixtures and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from
its use. The gain or loss arising from the derecognition is determined
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the
carrying amount of the relevant asset, and is recognised in surplus or
deficit in the period in which the asset is derecognised.

At the end of each reporting period, the FRC assesses whether there
is any indication that an item of office furniture, fixtures and equipment
may be impaired or a previously recognised impairment loss no
longer exists or may have decreased. Following this year’s review, no
impairment loss has been recognised (2016: nil).

M. WAEEXRE - HER

R i (8

MARERE HBERIERNNRZAITE
OB EBL (A ) 78R ’\‘&&Mﬁ%ooo
m%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%i%i%c%“*%ﬂ
KB ABTE B MR - @%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁh
ﬁ%@ﬁ% TEHbBAND (5 E i B FEE A 5 T
TBEMMENREMBEENEE A BB
z]g o

MEDRERNRAEERE KERREIER
ZEETRIMEASF G EEAEARER - B
OREBHEKAR - STHB A EAFGN
T~

WAERARESR 12104
B 3F
E AR RE 7F

BE  TEASHRTERNEE LR EER
SHEAETRE - RIFHEERE -

MRERE REEBNE ETE%
@hﬁ%%é%?%%i*X@@ﬂ
iﬁ%°%¢ﬁ%%ﬁ§§$mﬁﬁﬂﬁ,
BR(REEEBEEMSHRRFE(INE)
IEmMeBEENEZRET)  RZEERLE
BHEE R AZ SIS o

RERERE AR - URERBTERES

RAMBRBERHAERE  £EREZEE
BHEIRRE - SR RNRERBLRETT
BEESBERD - KAFEERHR  RF
HRAMIREEK (2016 4 : £#) -
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12. Receivables and Prepayments 12. B EBRF R TR FRIE

2017 2016

Interest receivable FEYF B 119,505 406,844
Prepayments AR RUR

— Medical and life insurance —EBENMASZRE 314,796 284,619

— Staff benefits —ETERH 27,147 12,445

— Professional liability insurance —EEHERR 13,589 13,589

- Others —H A 119,718 100,925

594,755 818,422

13. Time Deposits with Original Maturities Greater 13. RE|HAZR=@ AN EH=E

than Three Months E

Time deposits with original maturities greater than three months REBEEZR = ANTEHER - EEEF
carried fixed interest rates ranging from 0.88% to 1.42% (2016: FFEMO0.88EE1.42[FFTE (2016 4F : 0.58
0.58% to 1.53%) per annum. The balances outstanding at 31 EZE1.53/E) - R2017E & 2016412 A 31
December 2017 and 2016 had maturities less than 12 months from B &R A BREAR 12 (8 A AR -

the end of the reporting period.

14. Cash and Cash Equivalents 14. RERREEZEY
2017 2016
Cash on hand FERS 2,374 3,649
Current accounts ST EEBRER 501,532 127,704
Savings account HEFER 849,341 541,947
Time deposits with original maturities JREEA AT EEE =18 A &Y
within three months TEHITE 6,400,000 4,200,000
7,753,247 4,873,300
Cash equivalents are time deposits with original maturities within three REZEYARIEETEA=EA 8T
months, which are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and BT ApERERARMESENRS MA
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. Frg REEEZBRRTA o
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15.

16.

Funds

General fund represents the operating surplus of the FRC’s recurrent
funding.

Reserve fund represents the non-recurrent contributions received
from the CRTF, the HKICPA, the SFC and the HKEX at the
establishment of the FRC according to the MoU. Each party
contributed a lump-sum amount of $5 million which is not refundable.
The reserve fund is to be deployed to meet any inadequacies of the
recurrent funding and other exigencies of circumstances.

Financial Instruments

The carrying amounts of financial instruments by category are as
follows:

15.

16.

%

—RESVEVBERREEEESNEE
AR o

FHESEAREMELERS BEGFH
NE  BEGREIMREFBHETENR
UMBERBREMRANFEEEEES - &
BWRIRA—FTAHE - REG00ETHNE
T RESTREFHES TR REMES
BRTEA -

THITH
EESBMTANEESHNT :

2017 2016

Financial assets EREE
Interest receivable JEWLF B 119,505 406,844

Time deposits with original maturities REBAR BB =(E A/

greater than three months TEHITE K 38,000,000 38,000,000
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREFEY 7,753,247 4,873,300
45,872,752 43,280,144

Financial liabilities cRIaE
Accounts payable and accruals JERBR R R BT E A 3,340,813 2,630,879

The carrying amounts of the FRC’s financial assets and financial
liabilities approximate to their fair values as at 31 December 2017 and
2016.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the statement
of financial position when the FRC becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of an instrument. They are initially measured at fair value
and thereafter stated at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. No transaction costs have occurred.

R2017F R 2016512 A31 H - MIEERRB
NeEMEENERABENERSERIER
AIEE -

THEENSRABENUHERBDK S —
B TAARIGKHORT T - RETHR
MERPHER - ELERTEAKVARAEBE
& HRAIRAER N KRR E H AT
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16.

17.

(@)

Financial Instruments (continued)
Financial assets

The objective of holding financial assets is to collect contractual cash
flows, which are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding. An impairment loss is recognised when
there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired. No impairment
loss has been recognised in 2017 (2016: nil).

A financial asset is derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows
from the asset have expired or the FRC has transferred substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset.

Financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the relevant obligation is
discharged, is cancelled or expires.

Financial Risks
Credit risk

The FRC’s credit risk is primarily attributable to accounts receivable,
time deposits and other bank balances.

The accounts receivable are assessed for recoverability on an
individual basis and impairment allowances are recognised when
considered necessary. The recovery of the investigation costs
is closely monitored by the Council. The FRC does not hold any
collateral or other credit enhancements over these balances.

The Council approved an investment policy which, subject to other
limits, only allows the FRC to place deposits with licensed banks in
Hong Kong having regard to their credit rating. The policy also limits
the amount placed with each bank and the maximum duration the
deposit is placed in order to manage its credit risk.

The portfolio of deposits is managed and monitored to ensure it meets
the investment policy with monthly reports submitted to the Finance
Committee and bi-monthly reports to the Council. As a result, the FRC
is not exposed to significant credit risk. The maximum exposure to
credit risk is represented by the carrying amount of the financial assets
as set out in the statement of financial position.

Financial Reporting Council Annual Report 2017

16.

17.

(@

ERTH )

EREE
HBESREENEHREKNARBEERE -
ZEREREERBENEAERAELREHF
B REEBAEeRAEREBERAEESR
ARERS HERR o 2017 SR 0 ERE AR (E 18 25
(2016 4F : ) o

ML EERYCE S RENENE 2 MM %
EHRBDOHEEMBRANLT 2R
CIHERE - ZTREES PR ILFER

TMEE
SRA BB ORBRER - BUS LI
IR -

& RbJE e

1= FERR
MBERRAAENEARRE RS RN
R SEEMER R MRS -

W R SRR 18 ) 2 S R A AT U B e R R AR
BERERERRERE - NETYERERE
FRARE) B o BA TS TE R /R 3 S 3k 3% 5 A BR AT
B IR A SRS EE RS
o °

RV BERFDKECBBNRERE 8
BERBEANETAEMRIRET  RIF
ERFRNBRRRRITRLEN - EAK
RIHRE T EFERITOER LERMEHER
WERRTRE  UEEBERRR -

MRERBDEEMERFRES - BRETE
BREHK YEEARNBZEGLEME
AR BERBK BHRZIRE - ERN Lals
i BgERBY EERERER o Bk
ARTHINEBMEERE S RARAARE
M= s AER -



[P -
ke

00000000

17. Financial Risks (continued)
(b) Liquidity risk

(c)

The FRC has a strong cash position and therefore has a very low level
of liquidity risk. The FRC maintains sufficient levels of cash and cash
equivalents and manages its working capital by carefully reviewing
forecasts on a regular basis. All financial liabilities were due to be
repaid within three months (2016: three months) from the end of the
reporting period.

Market risk

Currency risk

The FRC receives its funding and settles its expenses in Hong Kong
dollars. Its financial assets and financial liabilities are all denominated
in Hong Kong dollars. Hence, the FRC is not exposed to any currency
risk.

Interest rate risk

The FRC’s interest bearing assets mainly comprise funds placed in
time deposits with fixed interest rates. The FRC is subject to interest
rate risk where a volatile market exists. This risk is managed by having
several short term deposits.

17. €A (%)

(b)

(©

REBE SRR

MBEHRBNBR AR - ELRBIER
BRIAEER - MBERBERTEKINRS
MRS EY  WERTEHRRERTERIA
ERHZEED - MAELRBENRE Y
RE=MEAAM(2016F : =fEHA ) FIHEER -

% EkR

EHmp
MIBERBESWARSTHIG BT - M
BEREERTRABEHNETREN -
I B 765 B 3R 9 00 AR (AR B MK LR

Tz f
MBEHRBNENBEETERBEEN XN
EMER - EMSHBRRE - MBKERBDE
EERAEER - MEERDEBHEEETE
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We currently have a complement of 26 staff in the FRC, comprising a strong  BIiSERBEAE26RETL — X ABENER
team of professionally qualified accountants with audit background, a legally ~ EV@FHE S MBI - —RRIEEER &K —I
qualified in-house General Counsel and dedicated administrative staff. HITEFMBHBTTIRABHEK °

The key management team is: TEEREKREE

Front: Mr Paul F. Winkelmann, CEO
(RIHE) ERER A - ITHAEEL

Back (from left):  Mr Alfred Chan (General Counsel), Ms Wincey Lam (Deputy CEO), Ms Florence Wong (Senior Director), Mr Chan Tak Shing (Senior Director)
BEE(oRe) : BUREILAE (REDARER) - MEER T (ANTEER) - TREX T (RRRAEEE)  REKTE(SRALHE)
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Key Operations Statistics

FEEEHE
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

Pursuable complaints received
B ] RER R 20 33 46" 118* 126*
Financial statements selected/identified for review
BHEE R RIERE TSR K 75 87 75 38* 48*
Investigations initiated
FARMAEHER 7 22 11 18 14
Investigations completed
TERFAEMER 5 4 9 11 11
Enquiries completed
TEREAER 2 1 - 1 -

# Included 101, 97 and 22 complaints received in 2017, 2016 and 2015 #
respectively, which appear to have come from the same source and were

directed at a single audit firm.

* The financial statements review programme was enhanced with revised

filtering criteria during 2016 to focus on certain areas of likely non-
compliance/irregularity. Therefore, the number of financial statements
identified for review in 2016 and 2017 are not comparable to the statistics

of previous years.

BIED B 2017 F - 2016 FF R 2015 F & 1
2R B R —AORL & H R —E 2 EAITTAY 101

7T R 22 IR °

REF2016F 2 E I 5k R BT Bl a0 EFE 2
B EERETFREAETERATER /T
EITARES - Bt - B 2016 F & 2017 F
BIERMNMBRERBES T A EURFEED

HEIFLLE -
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MANAGEMENT AND OPERATIONS REVIEW (continueq)

BENEFOREw

Review of Complaints

Every complaint received is carefully evaluated prior to determining whether
to close the case or commence an investigation and/or an enquiry.

The FRC received 126 pursuable complaints in 2017. Of these, seven
related to auditing or reporting irregularities and four related to non-
compliance with accounting requirements. A further 115 complaints involved
both auditing or reporting irregularities and non-compliance with accounting
requirements.

Of the pursuable complaints received, 101 (2016: 97) appear to have come
from the same source and were directed at a single audit firm. While none of
these complaints gave rise to any investigation, the 2017 complaints were
referred to HKICPA for follow up.

EH R
ABEREMFEEOTRER - URTRTER
RUFARMBER B ©

AKBR2017 FREIE126 RAJRERF - BF » +
T RBARERTETE ORI RTERSE

HEEH - BIMISRRARS MET K ERT
DTBHREAREEH -

BIR

BVEER A REIRFF - 1017 (2016 F : 97 R)

RRER R - WEE R —MEEHRTT © BRZ

SRHERHAERERTMWASE - 82017 FU3
WZERFEARCHEEN TFTEESHMAGRE -

2017 2016
Complaints from the public RE AR 112 106
Complaints from listed entity KB ETEEBHRR - 1
Complaints from the HKEX R BB TR AR 7 4
Complaints from the HKICPA RKEBBLEMASHIRR 4 3
Complaints from the SFC R EFEEERIRF 3 4
Total HEt 126 118

The FRC handled the 14 complaints brought forward from the previous
year, along with the 126 pursuable complaints received during the year.
12 investigations were initiated during the year. By the end of the year, 14
complaints were still being evaluated.

ARREPHEEE 145 L —FEEEHRE - I
RA26 R A R A R 55 - F B R
12RAE - BEAFER  ABNERN14RE
i -

2017 2016
Brought forward FUEMFTOEZR 14 24
Pursuable complaints received FEIER AT BRI R 126 118
Completed with no follow-up action B TRk i 7 E IR A A 2 (10) (113)
Referred to specified enforcement B FRERITRENEZR
agencies (104) (4)
Initiated investigation and/or enquiry RAEAL /AN ER (12) (11)
In progress at end of year FRINDEBEFHEZR 14 14

Financial Reporting Council Annual Report 2017
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Review of complaints

EHIRER
142 140
u |
-l
128 126
57 60
| |
28
| 43
6 36
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
- Handled during the year —fll— Completed during the year
FRRE FRE T
Source of pursuable complaints
Al RAEIR FFHI IR
126
118
90% 89%
Members of the public
46 NN
Regulators
38 EEHE
- 6% 65% W Listed entities
EmEeE
15% o :
88% l Bothre ulanrs and members of the public
80% 35% 0% 1, RIEREEERBLRARAL

2013

2014 2015 2016

Of the pursuable complaints received, 101 (2016: 97 and 2015: 22)
appear to have come from the same source and were directed at a
single audit firm. While none of these complaints gave rise to any
investigation, the 2017 complaints were referred to HKICPA for follow
up.

EPEENTRERSD - B1017R(2016%F : 975R
% 20155 : 22R) SR AR — R - Wi HE—H
EFHENIT - MARSRFERMARERREAEMA
£ B2017FRENZERFERCREN TEE
EEETAEIRE o
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MANAGEMENT AND OPERATIONS REVIEW (ontinued)
EIE K E/ELIEE @

By eliminating the anomalies created by the number of complaints  #iBR/A 20154 + 2016 £ K 2017 F 5 5K B &E — HR
which appear to have come from a single source in 2015, 2016 and KIRFERFFIERNEE BN - URA 2014 F 34+
2017, together with a different anomaly created in 2014, a different KRS —EEFEERE @ KFENDHEFTDH o
picture emerges.

Source of pursuable complaints
AR ER AR

26

25
22

B Members of the public
N YN

B Regulators
EEHE

e 54% W Listed entities
52% LhERE

l Both regulators and members of the public
FRREEERERARATLT

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
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Size of accounting firms involved in complaints
B RIBFFHE AT RV AR

126
118

W Big Four accounting firms
PR AT

B Medium-size accounting firms (with six or more
33 partners/ directors)

AR ETT (BABSALBABA EE)

46

B Small-size accounting firms (with five or less
30% 7% partners/ directors)

45% 17% 9% - PNRIEEENTT (BREERATHERA/ EE)

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

By eliminating the anomalies created by the number of complaints #2015 + 2016 £ 2017 E5E R B E — KR
which appear to have come from a single source in 2015, 2016 and MIRFERFERNEEB R - URA 2014 F34E
2017, together with a different anomaly created in 2014, a different HE—EEEBRE  FPREFOSHMTHNEE
picture emerges. W HBERDR o

Size of accounting firms involved in complaints
B RIBFFHE FHERAT RV AR

26
25
22
20 30%
17 e e
30%
23% , ) )
30% B Big FOLir accounting firms
LN TR
B Medium-size accounting firms (with six or more
9 339 .
I 599 @ 2O partners/ directors)
- RARISETRITT (BANBSUAERERA/ ES)
40% B Small-size accounting firms (with five or less
partners/ directors)
259 o -7 R 9% NEIE AT (BARRATHABA/ BES)

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

MEERE 2017F 8K
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Financial Statements Review Programme

The financial statements review programme adopts a filtering approach to
identify financial statements for review based on various filters which are
approved by the OOC and re-visited annually.

In addition, a review of a selection of companies adopting Chinese
Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises (ASBE) continued to be
carried out in collaboration with HKEX and HKICPA. FRC then aggregates
the findings from all three sets of reviews and issues them to MOF.

In the past, the review of financial statements relied on the support of
external reviewers in reviewing financial statements. From 2017, the financial
statements review was carried out entirely in-house.

Investigations

The FRC handled 37 investigations brought forward from 2016 and initiated
14 investigations in 2017. In total, 11 investigations were completed and the
investigation reports have been referred to the HKICPA who will determine
whether any disciplinary or other action is warranted. A summary of the
findings from the investigations completed in 2017 can be found on pages
60 to 66 of this annual report.

During the year, the HKICPA’s disciplinary committees took disciplinary
action in response to seven investigations completed and referred to it by
the FRC in earlier years. The certified public accountants and corporate
practices involved in these cases were reprimanded and ordered to pay
penalties and costs.

By the end of the year, there were 40 investigations (2016: 37) in our
workload. Some of these investigations involve highly complex issues and
require the study of financial statements across several years. These have
required more time for evidence to be collected and information to be
reviewed. The increase in the number of outstanding cases in 2016 was
due to our focus to resolve complaints in accordance with our target of 90
days, and single complaints giving rise to multiple investigations. This trend
continued in 2017.

Financial Reporting Council Annual Report 2017
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The outstanding investigations include those where we await finalisation of
the Memorandum of Understanding with the MOF. In the meantime, we have
not pursued these investigations and will not do so until there is arrangement
on gaining access to audit working papers in the Mainland. Consequently
the total number of outstanding investigations has risen in 2017.

DEREFNERBEAREFATETHAZE
BTSRRI E R o B AT WAERUIST IR A
MEFTTHEREROLCISEERN - Y ABREIEXSE
B % o (1t 2017 F 512 38 & o 6 {8 52 4 206 P
e

2017 2016
In progress at beginning of year FURAEFHREE 37 30
Initiated in the year FANRMAAESHEZE 14 18
51 48
Completed B 7K (11) (11)
In progress at end of year FR{DEAERHEZR 40 37
Progress of investigation cases
REERNER
48 5.1
39 o
32 H
|
15
= 9 11 11
5 4 —a— —=
= N
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
- Handled during the year =fll— Completed during the year
(including those not being actively pursued) FANETEK

FRRRHE
(B EEEETRAENER)
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MANAGEMENT AND OPERATIONS REVIEW (ontinueq)

EIE K E/ELIEE @

Key issues and findings in completed investigations

The major audit deficiency identified continues to be the failure of auditors
to identify inappropriate accounting treatments by companies. This
indicates that the auditors had not performed appropriate audit procedures
or properly evaluated the evidence to support the accounting treatments
proposed by the management in respect of the following areas:

The top four combined represents 79% for 2017 (2016: 79%) of deficiencies

found. The top two represent 51% (2016: 42%) of the deficiencies found.

EERAEERNEEEAERZER
ARBRRRBBEERI A VEATEE HE
BRENARBHTRMEE  EER T KEEA
BRTEE B ER RS TR R EEE
94T 31 B0 T 2 PR ) BT 3%

B Impairment of assets

BERE

ToP Four M Business combinations
BAREER 5

XSG
Revenue recognition
Uz TR
W Financial instruments

TRTA

Valuation of assets
BEME

Disclosure deficiencies
HETE

Going concern
FEKE

Rights to purchase of asset
WHE & B 2 #E R
Earnings per share
GRET
Share-based payment

BAXNZH

SEANMOEEBNE2017EL AT BENTI%
(2016 4F : 79%) ° AR M EERE 2 BHAEEER
H151% (2016 4F : 42%) ©
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Enquiries

The FRC brought forward two enquiries from last year.

3
AREEN EFRDAESAOMREMER -

Each enquiry is handled by a Financial Reporting Review Committee with S FREAERHFHESRHBAEZEGRARBE L —
support from staff of the FRC. The time taken to complete an enquiry [EE - Tk —FE M AEMEENRERTER

depends on the circumstances and complexity of individual cases. EREE R AR ME
2017 2016
In progress at beginning of year FNEAFHEZE 2 2
Initiated in the year FANRMAEHAEZE - 1
2 3
Completed FERK B A A EZE = (1)
In progress at end of year FRIDEEAFOEZE 2 2

Progress of enquiry cases
B ERNER

3 3
[ |

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
- Handled during the year ~fll— Completed during the year
FNERE FRE K
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Summary of completed investigations

Of the 11 investigation cases completed in 2017, several revealed that
there were non-compliances with accounting requirements in the financial
statements and that the auditors had failed to identify them during their
audits. Our findings also identified concerns with the level of audit challenge
to management’s assertions. The following is a brief summary of the findings
from our investigations.

Accounting for business combinations

1. In a business combination, a listed entity issued convertible bonds
and included a contingent consideration in the nature of a financial
asset to satisfy the purchase consideration. In the application of the
acquisition method, the listed entity did not recognise any assets
acquired or liabilities assumed in the acquisition except for a very
small amount of other payable, notwithstanding that the investment
circular mentioned a number of potential identifiable assets.

The investigation revealed that the auditor failed to (a) challenge
the appropriateness of the acquisition-date fair value measurement
of the convertible bonds issued as purchase consideration,
(b) adequately evaluate the reasonableness of management’s
estimation of the future profits of the acquired business in
determining the acquisition-date fair value of the contingent
consideration, and (c) challenge management’s assessment as to
whether all the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
in the business combination were recognised in the financial
statements.

2. In three investigations, listed entities recognised, among others,
intangible assets and goodwill in business combinations. In these
cases, management engaged external valuers to determine the
acquisition-date fair values of the intangible assets acquired.

In one of the investigations, the auditor engaged another valuer
(auditor’s expert) to review the valuation report provided by
management which formed part of the audit evidence. However,
the investigation revealed that the auditor failed to (a) address the
concerns raised by the auditor’s expert regarding the discount
rates used in the valuation report, (b) understand and evaluate
the valuation methodologies, (c) assess whether the scope of
work of the auditor’s expert was appropriate, and (d) understand
and evaluate the reasonableness of certain assumptions used by
management in the projection of revenue, growth rates, attrition
rates, cost saving rates and useful lives of assets.

Financial Reporting Council Annual Report 2017
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In another two investigations, auditors placed reliance on external
valuations provided by management but failed to challenge the
reasonableness of critical assumptions and estimations applied in
the valuation, understand the valuation methods and test the source
data, including (a) the forecasted sales, gross profit margin and
growth rate of the acquired businesses; (b) the discount rate and (c)
royalty rate used in the discounted cash flows.

A listed entity issued convertible notes, denominated in Hong
Kong dollars, as part of the purchase consideration for a business
combination. The functional currency of the listed entity was
Renminbi and the consolidated financial statements were presented
in Hong Kong dollars. The valuation of the convertible notes did
not incorporate any adjustment factor for a specific term that the
principal/redemption amount of the convertible notes should be
translated from Hong Kong dollars to Renminbi at a fixed exchange
rate upon their issuance and redemption.

The investigation revealed that the auditor had considered the
impact of the specific term relating to the fixed exchange rate on the
convertible notes during the relevant audits and quantified the effects
of potential misstatements. However, the auditor failed to:

(@)  sufficiently evaluate whether certain assumptions used in the
valuations of the convertible notes such as the discount rate
would also be affected by this specific term, which would likely
impact the fair value measurements of the convertible notes,

(b) sufficiently challenge and evaluate the findings and
conclusions of the management’s expert’s work and the
auditor’s expert’s work on the valuations,

(c) properly evaluate the effect of uncorrected misstatements
relating to the convertible notes, both in relation to particular
classes of transactions or account balances and the financial
statements as a whole, and

(d) include the uncorrected misstatements relating to the
convertible notes in the request for written representation from
management.

HERIRERET - ZEEN KR B IR E R
HHINBEERS  BRFEREMET
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A listed entity was required to issue a variable number of its own
shares, with reference to the future profit of an acquired business, as
part of the purchase consideration in a business combination. The
listed entity recognised the consideration shares as equity in the year
of acquisition and retrospectively restated the consideration shares
as a financial liability without re-measurement in the following year.

The investigation revealed that the auditor failed to identify that the
issuance of a variable number of consideration shares as purchase
consideration was a contingent consideration in the business
combination, which should have been classified as a financial liability.
When the contingent consideration was restated in the subsequent year,
the auditor failed to recognise that the contingent consideration should
have been re-measured at fair value subsequent to initial recognition.

Financial instruments

There were non-compliances with accounting requirements
and audit deficiencies in a listed entity’s consolidated financial
statements in relation to a number of financial instruments:

(@  The listed entity was unable to redeem certain convertible
bonds upon maturity. An extension of redemption was
granted subject to satisfying certain conditions, which had not
been fulfilled at the year-end. The listed entity classified the
convertible bonds as non-current liabilities when they should
have been classified as current liabilities.

(b)  The listed entity was required to redeem certain subordinated
convertible notes upon maturity by issuance of its own shares
at the higher of the market price at the maturity date and a
specified conversion price. The subordinated convertible notes
were recognised as equity instruments of the listed entity when
in fact they should have been recognised as a financial liability.

(c)  Certain convertible preference shares and convertible bonds were
issued and in addition the listed entity had granted share options to
its employees during a financial year. The measurements of these
financial instruments were based on external valuations which
needed to be properly evaluated by the auditors.
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The investigation revealed the following findings:

(@  The auditor failed to identify that the listed entity had not fully
satisfied the conditions for the extension of redemption of the
matured convertible bonds. Because the listed entity did not have
an unconditional right to defer the settlement of the convertible
bonds at the year-end, they should have been classified as
current liabilities. Even if the conditions for extension were
satisfied, the auditor failed to consider the financial effect on
the modification of repayment terms. The auditor also failed to
prepare adequate audit documentation in this respect.

(b)  When an entity issues a financial instrument that will be settled
in its own shares, classification of the financial instrument
depends on whether the number of shares to be issued is
fixed or variable. The auditor failed to consider the terms of
the subordinated convertible notes which would cause the
listed entity to issue a variable number of its own shares and
therefore the subordinated convertible notes should not have
been recognised and classified as equity instruments.

(¢)  The auditor failed to challenge the fair value measurement of
the derivative component of certain convertible bonds and did
not sufficiently document their independent evaluation of the
relevance and reasonableness of the significant assumptions
and methods used by the valuer in determining the fair values
of the derivative components of the convertible bonds,
convertible preference shares and share options.

A listed entity failed to recognise an impairment loss in its quoted
equity investments, classified as available-for-sale financial assets,
when there was a significant decline in fair value of these investments
below cost. In accordance with Hong Kong Accounting Standard 39
Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, a significant
decline in fair value of equity investment below its cost is an objective
evidence of impairment. The cumulative decline in fair values of the
available-for-sale financial assets should have been removed from
equity and recognised in profit or loss as impairment loss.

The investigation revealed that the auditor failed to evaluate and
challenge management’s impairment assessment on the available-
for-sale financial assets. The auditor also failed to properly prepare
audit documentation in this respect.
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A listed entity acquired an unquoted equity investment, classified
as available-for-sale investment and carried at cost less impairment
loss. During the financial year, an overseas investment authority
declined the listed entity’s application for, among others, the
acquisition of this available-for-sale investment but the relevant
financial statements did not include any disclosures in relation to the
decision of the investment authority and the relevant financial risks.

The investigation found that the auditor failed to (a) consider the
relevant laws and regulations and to perform additional audit
procedures in relation to the possible impact of the overseas
investment authority’s decision, (b) challenge the appropriateness
of the bases and assumptions applied in relation to the impairment
assessment of the available-for-sale investment, (c) evaluate the lack
of disclosures in the financial statements in respect of the financial
risks associated with the available-for-sale investment and the
appropriateness of the audit opinion, and (d) prepare sufficient audit
documentation in this respect.

A listed entity’s wholly owned subsidiary issued a number of
preferred shares which caused a deemed disposal with the Group’s
interest reduced to less than 50%. The listed entity continued to
account for the investee as a subsidiary. The terms of the preferred
shares included specific events and conditions that (a) might trigger
the repayment of the principal amount of the preferred shares and
accrued dividends, whether or not declared; and (b) require consent
of the holders of a majority of the preferred shares on a number of
matters.

The investigation found that the auditor failed to consider (a) the
substance of the contractual arrangements and compare these
to the definitions of financial liability and equity in Hong Kong
Accounting Standard (HKAS) 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation
when determining whether the classification of the preferred shares
and the treatment of the related dividend were appropriate; and (b)
whether the rights provided to the holders of the preferred shares
would affect the Group’s ability to control the investee following the
deemed disposal.
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Revenue

A listed entity recognised revenue from a significant sale transaction
at invoiced amount in the financial statements but did not adjust
for the effects of the time value of money when the customer was
permitted to pay the sales proceeds by installments and interest-free
over ten years. Both the auditor of the relevant financial statements
and the successive auditor agreed with the accounting treatment.

The investigations discovered that both auditors failed to (a)
challenge management’s assessment on the measurement of the
revenue, and (b) evaluate the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable from the sale transaction and the effects on the
financial statements.

The terms of certain sales transactions of a listed entity included a
right to exchange of the goods sold under specific conditions. The
listed entity recognised revenue from these transactions without
considering whether an appropriate adjustment was needed on the
revenue to reflect the risk of exchange of goods.

The investigation discovered that the auditors failed to consider the
terms of the relevant transactions and did not evaluate their effects
on the recognition of revenue.

Impairment assessment of non-financial assets

A listed entity had acquired exploration and evaluation assets
several years prior to the relevant financial year. There had been
no development or production activity since acquisition. There
was a question as to whether the auditor had challenged the basis
of measurement and performed independent evaluation of the
recoverable amount for the purpose of impairment assessment.

The investigation revealed that the auditor used an external valuation
provided by management as their audit evidence for impairment
assessment. However, the auditor failed to (a) understand and
evaluate the appropriateness of the valuation method used by the
valuer; and (b) assess the reasonableness and appropriateness of
the estimations and assumptions applied and the relevance and
accuracy of other source data used in the business forecast and the
valuation.
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2. A listed entity management performed a year-end impairment
assessment of intangible assets and goodwill acquired in a business
combination during the financial year. For the purpose of impairment
assessment, management used a year-end valuation that was
principally based on the same assumptions and estimations that
were applied at the acquisition-date of the business combination
despite that there was a significant shortfall of actual sales after the
acquisition compared with projected sales at the acquisition date.

The investigation revealed that the key assumptions relating to gross
profit margin and growth rate of the acquired business used in the
year-end valuation were the same as those applied at the acquisition
date. The auditor failed to challenge the reasonableness of the
assumptions, management’s re-assessment of future business, and
the reliability of source data used in the valuation.

St A listed entity management performed an impairment assessment of
cash-generating units which included intangible assets and goodwiill.
The recoverable amounts were determined based on value-in-use
calculations and were supported by external valuation reports.

The investigation revealed that the auditor’s procedures, in respect
of the impairment assessment of intangible assets and goodwill
were limited to reliance on the valuation reports and management’s
representations. The auditor failed to assess the progress and the
actual performance of the acquired business since acquisition,
challenge the reasonableness of business growth and profit margin
assumptions as well as other key assumptions and estimations
applied in the valuations.

Going concern assumption

A listed entity incurred a significant loss for the year and had net liabilities
at the year-end. The relevant financial statements had been prepared on
a going concern basis and had identified a number of specific measures
which the listed entity was taking to improve its financial and liquidity
position to support the going concern assumption.

The investigation revealed that the auditor failed to evaluate and challenge
the appropriateness and viability of management’s stated specific
measures and consequently whether their assessment on the listed
entity’s ability to continue as a going concern was appropriate.
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Letters of Advice

When evaluating complaints or reviewing financial statements, the FRC may
decide that while the complaint or review does not warrant being taken
further to an investigation or enquiry, it is appropriate to issue letters to the
listed entities and their auditors pointing out our findings and suggesting
improvement measures. The following findings gave rise to such letters in
2017:

° In calculating earnings per share, listed entities should compare the
offer price in a rights issue with the market price of its own shares to
identify any bonus element in the rights issue.

o When there is a retrospective restatement or reclassification of
a financial statement item which has a material effect on the
information at the beginning of the preceding period, preparers of
financial statements are reminded to present an additional statement
of financial position at the beginning of the preceding period. Merely
restating the “five-year summary”, which is not a part of a complete
set of financial statements, does not satisfy the requirement of the
financial reporting standard.

° Sales rebates should generally be netted off against revenue instead
of including them in selling expenses.

° Paragraph 17 of HKAS 23 Borrowing Costs specifies conditions
that are required to be met before the commencement of the
capitalisation of borrowing costs. In respect of the condition that
the entity “undertakes activities that are necessary to prepare the
asset for its intended use or sale”, preparers of financial statements
are reminded that merely holding an asset without production or
development does not meet the specified condition for capitalisation
of incurred borrowing costs.

o Preparers of financial statements are reminded to provide adequate
information in the financial statements for users to understand the
impact of various specific transactions and events. In particular, this
relates to the adequacy of information on the effect of entrusted
financing arrangements and assets, significant terms of financial
instruments that would affect their recognition and measurement
and users’ ability to evaluate the relevant risks, circumstances or
events that led to the reversal of a write-down of inventories, the
reasons for using a budget/forecast period that is longer than five
years when determining the value in use of assets for the purpose of
impairment assessment.
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Honorary Advisory Panel

HEREE

The function of the Honorary Advisors is to advise the FRC, including its committees and staff, with
respect to any matter referred to the Honorary Advisors by the FRC.

HEERAEMEMHMEEREENNEE  AVBERS (BREZEEET)RHER -

Panel Members During 2017

2017 FREE B K B

Mr Nicholas Allen'

EfEREE

Mr Allen is a former partner of PricewaterhouseCoopers in Hong Kong (PwC Hong Kong); and currently acts
as the Chairman of Link Asset Management Limited; an Independent Non-Executive director of Lenovo Group
Limited; and CLP Holdings Limited.

ERREESTEBRERGKGESHMEBMEaBA  BAEREEERBARRAER - URBEEEEIR
NEIFIFEZEBRERARNBILIFRITES -

Mr Roger Best, JP

BHALLE  KFEMHL

Mr Best was a partner of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu and is a former president of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (HKICPA). He has chaired the HKICPA Financial Reporting Standards
Committee and has also been a member of the IFRS Advisory Council.

BEOMHE A BEEY - BERASHMTARA  LARNEAGHMAEER  QECEMBREEAE
BEEF TEITEERMBREEIERNZESNHNKE -

Mr Clement Chan

BREBER A

Mr Chan is the Managing Director — Assurance of BDO Limited and is a former president of the HKICPA. He
has actively participated in standard setting and governance activities of the HKICPA.
REERBBLGEZSTMEBAMERAREAMESTLLE - AR RABTEGIMAGER - WER
SENGNGIE LR REIRIES -

Dr Moses Cheng, GBM, GBS, OBE, JP

BREEL REAPE  SEHAEEF > AFEEEHE - AFHL

Dr Cheng is currently the Chairman of the Insurance Authority. He is also a consultant of PC Woo & Co. after
serving as its Senior Partner for 21 years. He has extensive experience in listing matters.
BETRRBEEE DR RADDEMEBAAERERM - M EEZNEREBAR T —F  WEL
TEB - EFEENEER -
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Mr Chew Fook Aun

BEZREE

Mr Chew has over 30 years of experience in accounting, auditing and finance in the United Kingdom and
Hong Kong. He is currently the deputy chairman and executive director of Lai Sun Garment (International)
Limited and Lai Sun Development Company Limited, the executive director of eSun Holdings Limited, and the
chairman and executive director of Lai Fung Holdings Limited.

AEEERBMEEREFBOFNEH BT ReBER  BRBFRXBEEERARARBHERAR AR
MBI ZERAUTES  LREZERAERARNPTEENELCERERATNIERATES -

Mr Eugene Fung, SC

BEELE  ERKEE

Mr Fung is a barrister in private practice. He is experienced in the fields of commercial law, trusts and probate,
tax, property litigation, and company and insolvency law.

HEER—BIAREERKREM - EREE - F50%  BERE  BHE  WEFD ARAIBERK
EETEEREELR -

Dr PM Kam, BBS

HEXELT  WEAEE

Dr Kam is a certified public accountant. He is a former CEO of the FRC. Prior to joining the FRC, he was the
group financial controller of Jardine Matheson Limited.

HELE RS - b B EMBERBOITRAR - RIMAPBERBDZH - B EEMERERAFE
Elp TS

Mr Edward Kwan, MH
BEALE  $EFE

Mr Kwan was formerly the chief executive officer of HSBC Broking Services (Asia) Limited.
A GEELSSMARE (M) AR ARITERE -

Mr Clement Kwok

ST RE

Mr Kwok is the Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer of the Hongkong and Shanghai Hotels, Limited.
He has served on the Listing Committee of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (SEHK), the Takeovers
and Mergers Panel, the Securities and Futures Appeals Tribunal, the Hang Seng Index Advisory Committee
and the Harbourfront Commission, as well as the Interpretations Committee of the International Accounting
Standards Board in London.

BEERES DERNBEERAT L EFRLIBRITIE, - LEEBMARIMER AT (M) 8 EHE
88 WEERAHEZEES BHLLAUEEBLRFNE  BEEYEREZEESS  BEFEBKEES  URUARH
MBS ERREGNERERES -

Mr Anders Lau'
BIEREE
Mr. Lau was formerly a partner of Ernst & Young (EY).

FEEQELRKEIMELHRERA -
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Mr Albert Li

TEESE

Mr Li was formerly a partner of KPMG Hong Kong and his main responsibilities were technical advisory and
audit.

FEECEFEEFAEAMEBMARA  TETERBRUERM LR

Dr Eric Li, GBS, JP

THREEL EEAERE - ATPHL

Dr Li is a senior partner of Li, Tang, Chen & Co, Certified Public Accountants and an independent non-
executive director of a number of listed companies in Hong Kong. He is also a member of the 12th National
Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference.
PETATZRGAMEBAEFESREA  TEEBZR ETARNBILIENTES - tTRFREHARBA
BEgHEE12ETHNESEEE -

Mr Tim Lui, SBS, JP

BEAR  REFMESE  KF#HL

Mr Lui is a senior advisor of PwC Hong Kong and a deputy of The National People’s Congress of the People’s
Republic of China.

BRERBRREBKEEMEBAMNRER  BEFH2BEARNKRE -

Ms Teresa Ma

BEPLZL

Ms Ma is an experienced lawyer and a mediator. She was a partner and a member of the International Board
of Linklaters.

BLEREFREMERA RS - 0GR FFERMEBANAEAREBREAEKE -

Mr Stephen Mercer

ElHELE

Mr Mercer is a partner with KPMG in Hong Kong.
EREEEREFHEBERA °

Mr Kenneth Morrison

NEERE

Mr Morrison is a Practicing Director of Mazars Hong Kong. He has served on several committees of the
HKICPA including Accounting Standards, Practice Review and Ethics. Mr Morrison is also a council member
of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Scotland.

M EEERTHESHMESMAEENEES - MU 2EZEFTBSHAG NMNEBEGER - 81X
BREXRTEZEESE - XEEEAELEHBHETSIMASNEEGKE -
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Mr Michael Scales

MRS EE

Mr Scales was previously Corporation Secretary of The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation
Limited. He also served as a member of the Standing Committee on Company Law Reform, SFC Share
Registrars Disciplinary Committee and SFC Dual Filing Advisory Group.

feABEEGERE DBEYRTARAFNAFNE - b BHERAFRVENERKEZES  EFMHES
BERZE RN BB LEZESNES MR ERERZE Y B FIEF R/ MEKE -

Mr Stephen Taylor

Stephen Taylor %t 4

Mr Taylor is senior partner in national audit and assurance technical department of Deloitte China and head of
the Deloitte Asia Pacific IFRS centre of excellence based in Hong Kong. He is a member of the International
Accounting Standards Board IFRS Advisory Council and a former chairman of the Listing Committee of
SEHK.

Stephen Taylor 5t B8 # PRI 2 BET MEZ X EERMAEREBA  AERERYTARBEFETH
BEL WP OHREEE - b EER S LN EESERYBREENERNZTEGOKE - WRATE
B ETEREGNEIRE o

Mr Huen Wong, BBS, JP

ITHERE  HRMER  AFHL

Mr Wong is the Principal of Fried Frank, Hong Kong and Shanghai offices. He is the former Chairman of the
Communications Authority. He is also the former President of the Inter-Pacific Bar Association and the Law
Society of Hong Kong.

TRERZARBMITEER LEDTERA - B EBAEBERREIE  TENEIRATFEMES
MREBEMEER -

Mr David Wu?

REBERE

Mr Wu is a Partner of PwC China, a member of CICPA. He has in-depth understanding of China’s economic
and regulatory landscape, as well as the latest developments in China’s accounting profession.
REEREFENEFRHEBA - FEFMSFA - RABEEREOLER R REBRE - WABPERT
ENEIER -

Term expired on 10 December 2017.
E8AR 2017 5512 A 10 B @i ©

Resigned with effect from 14 January 2018.
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Panel Members Appointed with effect from 1 March 2018
R2018F3 A1 BEZENERBEKE

Mr Anthony Leung

RNREE

Mr Leung is the Assurance Leader of EY member firms for Hong Kong and Macau. He is a former member of
the Listing Committee of SEHK from 2009 and completed the six-year term in 2015. He had previously served
on the Professional Conduct Committee of the HKICPA.
RNRAERELKEELRFIBHRBEEARA, BEMA ETMEZE 8% 8 (1£2009 £ 2015 FE TTHK
NEEH) c NEAEASHRMASEETAZESEE -

Mr Keith Pogson

BIKE

Mr Pogson is the Global Assurance Leader for Banking & Capital Markets at EY. Mr Pogson is a former
president of the HKICPA and continues to be a member of the Regulatory Oversight Board, the Audit
Committee and the Disciplinary Panel of the HKICPA. He is a member of the Listing Committee of SEHK and
a member of the Standing Committee on Company Law Reform.
BIEERELKNRITREATISREETEBEE - B HEEESHTNASSR  EEEEEEY
BLZES BERZESNEENENKE - =B ETEREGURARIEANEEBEZEGHIKE -

Mr Elton Yeung

BEEEE

Mr Yeung is the Strategy and One Firm Services Leader of PwC. He has extensive audit and business
advisory experiences especially in complex IPO engagements in the US, HK and Mainland China markets.
HBREREEAICGESTTMEBMEMEAMEEAHRA ZFR-AEINAL EHEBNEANEBE
BATENEETE  HEE  FEARPEAMBESTSNEERENVBREEREERANTE -

72
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Financial Reporting Review Panel
Panel Convenors

Mr Eugene Fung, SC

Mr Robert Gazzi

Dr PM Kam, BBS

Mr Carmelo Lee, JP

Mr Andrew Mak, BBS, JP
Mrs Catherine Morley

Ms Edith Shih

Prof Wong Tak Jun’

Members

Prof Gary Biddle

Mr Edmund Chan

Prof Cheng Cheng Shing
Prof Peter Cheng

Ms Yvonne Cheng, SC
Mr Ambrose Cheung, BBS, MH, JP
Ms Ivy Cheung

Mr Cheung Kwan Hoi
Mr Jeckle Chiu

Mr Mohan Datwani

Ms Ding Chen

Mr lan Farrar

Mr Tommy Fung

Mr Paul Hebditch

Ms Joan Ho

Mr Carlyon Knight-Evans
Ms Kelly Kong

Mr Nelson Lam

Ms Rosita Lee?

Mr Lee Yin-toa

Ms Cynthia Lim

Mr William Lim

Mr Roy Lo

Dr Guy Look

Mr Bernard Mak

Ms Agnes Nardi

Mr Hong Ng

Mr Paul Phenix

Mr Paul Shieh, SC

Mr Hamilton Tang

Ms Teo Chew Ping

Mr Tsui Hon Man

Ms Anna Wong'

Mr Wong Kim Man

Ms Priscilla Wong, BBS, JP
Mr Stephen Wong

Mr Thomas Wong

Ms Wendy Yuen

Ms Wendy Yung

Prof Zhang Guo Chang

1 Term expired on 15 July 2017

2 Resigned with effect from 4 December 2017 on being appointed as

Temporary Member of the FRC
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Audit Investigation Board during 2017

Members

Mr Paul F. Winkelmann (ex-officio) — Chairman
Ms Wincey Lam

Temporary members

Mr TS Chan

Mr Andes Kwok
Ms Anna Lau

Ms Florence Wong
Ms Joyce Woo

Process Review Panel

Chairman
Mr Anthony Chow, SBS, JP

Members

Ms Florence Chan

Mr Vincent Kwan'

Prof Low Chee Keong

Ms Edith Shih2

Mr Tse Kam Keung

Dr John Poon, BBS, JP (ex-officio)

1 Term expired on 31 December 2017
2 Appointed with effect from 1 January 2018
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Financial Reporting Council

Chairman
Dr John Poon, BBS, JP

Members

Mr Chan Tze Ching, BBS, JP

Mr Wilson Fung

Mr Nicholas Sallnow-Smith

Mr Sin Chung Kai, SBS, JP

Mr David Stannard

Mr Wong Kai Man, BBS, JP

Dr Kelvin Wong, JP

Ms Eirene Yeung

Ms Ada Chung, JP (ex-officio)

Mr Paul F.Winkelmann (ex-officio)

Honorary Advisory Panel

Mr Nicholas Allen?

Mr Roger Best, JP

Mr Clement Chan

Dr Moses Cheng, GBM, GBS, OBE, JP

Mr Chew Fook Aun
Mr Eugene Fung, SC
Dr PM Kam, BBS

Mr Edward Kwan, MH
Mr Clement Kwok

Mr Anders Lau’

Mr Anthony Leung?
Mr Albert Li

Dr Eric Li, GBS, JP
Mr Tim Lui, SBS, JP
Ms Teresa Ma

Mr Stephen Mercer
Mr Kenneth Morrison
Mr Keith Pogson?

Mr Michael Scales

Mr Stephen Taylor

Mr Huen Wong, BBS, JP
Mr David Wu?®

Mr Elton Yeung?

" Term expired on 10 December 2017
2 Appointed with effect from 1 March 2018
3 Resigned with effect from 14 January 2018
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Financial Reporting Council
29" Floor, High Block

Queensway Government Offices

66 Queensway, Hong Kong

% ERE

BB SHEB 665

SEERNEGESE29E

Tel B2 © (852) 2810 6321

Fax (58 ¢ (852) 2810 6320

Email T & :  general@frc.org.hk (General enquiry —f&&7)
: complaints@frc.org.hk (Complaints #&F)

Website #811F © www.frc.org.hk

Corporate video 185l :  frc.org.hk/en/corporate_video.php (English %)
: frc.org.hk/tc/corporate_video.php (Cantonese EE %)
frc.org.hk/sc/corporate_video.php (Putonghua i 3%)
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